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I FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

PREMIUM Premium(Rs in Lakh)
30,000 27,966
25,000
20,000
16,061 16,367
15,000 14,142
9,189
’ 8,720
10,000 7198 7,447
5,368 5,368
2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 (Q2)
M First Premium W Gross Premium
INVESTMENT
Investment (Rs in Lakh)
60,000
48,927
50,000
44,243
40,000
30,560
30,000
23,083
10,000 I
2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 (Q2)
LIFE FUND
Life Fund (Rs in Lakh)
45,000
40,000 38,791
35,000
29,730
30,000
25,000
20,000
14,632
15,000
10,000 7,014
5,000 2,081 .
_ ||
2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 (Q2)
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NETPROFIT
Netprofit (Rs in Lakh)

2,500

1,993
2,000

1,500 1,304

1,155 1,143

1,000 280

500

2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 (Q2)

NO. OF AGENT

No. of Agents

30,000
25,000 25,041
20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000
,310

2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 (Q2)

NET WORTH

Networth

160

140 146
138

120 131
117

100 109

80
60
40

20

2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 (Q2)

-
IM.EI_JFE" affes UrdGet 2006/00




MANAGEMENT EXPENSES RATIO

Management Expenses Ratio

35.00%

30.00%

25.00%

20.00%

15.00% 15.66%

10.00%
5.00%

0.00%
2074/75 2075/76 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 (Q2)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of LMLE, Life Insurance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of LM.E. Life Insurance Company
Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company'), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31™ Ashad 2077 (corresponding to 15" July 2020). and the statement of profit or
loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at 31* Ashad 2077 (comresponding to 15" July 2020), and of
its financial performance, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended in
accordance with Mepal Financial Reporting Standards {(NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Owr
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Awditor's Responsibilities for the
Auclit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the JCAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAN's Handbook of Code af Ethics for Professional Accountants, We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance

in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matiers,
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How our audit addressed the

of the Company as at 31"
Ashad 2077 has been
determined based on the
actuarial valuation report
submitted by the Actuary
appointed by the Company.
Valuation of liabilities for
insurance contract involves
complex and subjective
judgments about future events
for which minor changes in the
assumptions such as discount
rates, mortality rates, lapse
rates and return on investments
ete. can result into material
impact on the valuation of
these liabilities. In addition, the
valuation of insurance contract
liability is dependent on the
quality and accuracy of the
data used in valuation.
Considering the materiality of
the amount involved and the
requirement of external
valuation expert, the valuation
of these liabilities was
significant to our audit.

Key Audit Matter Ky imatier Hesulty
Valuation of Insurance

Contract Liabilities

Insurance Contract Liabilities | Our key audit procedures for this | Based on the audit

area included but were nol

limited to the following:

*  We reviewed and tested the
completeness and accuracy
of financial data submitted to
the Actuary.

*  We assessed the
independence, expertise and
qualifications of the Actuary
appointed by the Company
and the approvals relating to
appointment,

*  We reviewed the
appropriateness of actuarial
assumpiions, models and
methodology.

*  We reviewed the actuarial
valuation report submitted
by the Actuary which was
approved by Beema Samiti,

=  Reviewed the overall
process in place to determine
Insurance Contract
Liabilities including relevant
Directives issued by Beema
Samiti.

procedure followed
and the evidence
obtained, we consider
that valuation of
Insurance Contract
Liahilities is
acceptable.

Information Other Than the Financial Statements and The Auditor’s Report

Thereon

The Company’s management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report. but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditor’s report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our Knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we
read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance to correct the material misstatements,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Finaneial Reporting Standards (NFRSs), and for such internal control as
management determings is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reperting
process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Clur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 1o design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

= Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceriainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. [f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained upto the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or canditions
may cause the Company to cease o continue as a going concern.

We communicated with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemmal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We further report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the audit.

b. The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity
referred to in this report have been prepared in all material respect in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards. Proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books of accounts.
However, additional adjustments made in order to prepare financial statements as per Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards are vet 1o be incorporated in the books of accounts,

¢. To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Company. we have not come across any cases
where the Board of Directors or representative or any employee of the Company has acted
in contrary to the provisions of law or misappropriated the assets or caused loss or damage
to the Company.
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d. To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts we have not come across any cases where accounting
fraud has been committed in the Company.

¢. The Company has maintained reserve for unexpired risk as per Insurance Act 2049 and
Insurance Rules, 2049, The Insurance Fund, Compulsory Reserve Fund and other funds of
similar nature have been maintained as prescribed by Beema Samiti.

f. We have not come across any cases where the company is involved in any business other
than those licensed by Beema Samiti or has issued any policies other than those approved
by Beema Samiti.

g. We have not come across any cases where the Company has acted against the interest of
assured.

h. Apart from matters specified below, to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of accounts, the company
has generally complied with the Directives issued by Beema Samiti:

1. As persection 54 of Corporate Good Governance Directives, 2075, insurance company
shall not appoint person/institution as its agent who has not obtained a valid agent
license from Beema Samiti and also should not be involved in any kind of insurance
business with such personfinstitution. However, during the year 2076/77, the Company
has underwritten policies through some individuals who completed the agent training
and applied for license but were still in the process of obtaining the agent’s license from
Beema Samiti.

The management has informed that section 54 of Corporate Good Governance
Directives, 2075 is being complied with after implementation of ‘Insurance
Management Information System (IRMIS)' for Agent’s License by Beema Samiti.

2. As per section 4(a) of Insurer’s Registration and Insurance Business Operation
Directives, 2073, insurance company operating life insurance business is required to
maintain paid-up capital of NPR 2 billion. However the paid-up capital of the Company
as at 31 Ashad 2077 stands at NPR 1.4 billion only.

i. Reportable findings noted during the course of audit have been incorporated in our
Preliminary Audit Report issued to the Audit Committee of the Company, The Board of
Directors have responded to our comments and findings.

j. Financial and other relevant information has been provided to the sharcholders of the
Company,

k. The Company is capable to bear all its accepted long term liabilities in proportion to the
assets held by iL

I. The Company needs to implement effective controls for timely adjustment of items

appearing in bank reconciliation statements and maintenance of updated data and records
relating 1o investments made in fixed deposits of banks and financial institutions. Apart
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from this, to the best of our information and based on our audit, the internal control system
of the Company seems to be effective.

m. The statements received from the Branch offices of the Company, though not audited
independently, were adequate for the purpose of the audit,

BM Dhungana, FCA
Partner

For; B&B Associates
Chartered Accountants

Address: Manbhawan, Lalitpur
Date: 2078/11/19 (2022/03/03)
UDIN: 220303CA00327nU04v
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur

Statement of Financial Position

As At Ashadh 31, 2077 ( 15th July, 2020)

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Notes Current Year Previous Year
Assets
Intangible Assets 4 835,578 1,002,341
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 71173,387 80,025,859
Investment Properties 6 - -
Deferred Tax Assets 7 178,845,868 85,479,803
Investment in Subsidiaries 8 - -
Investment in Associates 9 - -
Investments 10 2,838,774,000 1,900,668,000
Loans " 179,214,895 66,307,282
Reinsurance Assets 12 - -
Current Tax Assets (Net) 21 96,918,471 56,231,822
Insurance Receivables 13 3,288,178 1,748,544
Other Assets 14 5,435,552 5,287,651
Other Financial Assets 15 36,399174 28,152,498
Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 317,775,560 419,384,886
Total Assets 3.728,660,663 2,644,288,686
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 17 (a) 1,400,000,000 1,400,000,000
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17 (b) - -
Share Premium 17 (c) - -
Catastrophe Reserves 17 (d) 44,063,378 24,154,900
Retained Earnings 17 (e) 213.174,618 128,051,251
Other Equity 17 (f) 180,405,532 87,039,467
Total Equity 1,837,643,528 1,639,245,618
Liabilities
Provisions 18 13,788,078 7,729,499
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19 1,649,227,003 874,343,822
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 - -
Insurance Payables 20 28,435,737 2,598,063
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 - -
Loans and Borrowings 22 - -
Other Financial Liabilities 23 159,362,573 101,220,210
Other Liabilities 24 40,203,744 19151,474
Total Liabilities 1,891,017,135 1,005,043,068
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,728,660,663 2,644,288,686

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our attached report of even date,

Kabi Phuyal
Chief Executive Officer

Jagat Bohara
Chief Financial Officer

Dr. Ram Hari Aryal-Chairman
Deep Chandra Regmi-Director
Sanjaya Adhikari-Director
Ashwini Kumar Thakur-Director

Yugesh Bhakta Bade Shrestha-Director

CA. BM Dhungana

Partner

For B& B Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date: 19/11/2078

Lalitpur, Nepal
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited

Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur

Statement of Profit or Loss

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Notes Current Year Previous Year
Income
Gross Earned Premiums 25 1,401,870,385 851,623,896
Premiums Ceded 26 (44,031,196) (21107,480)
Net Earned Premiums 27 1,357,839,189 830,516,416
Commission Income 28 - -
Investment Income 29 284,076,936 202,820,603
Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes 30 - -
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 31 - -
Other Income 32 5,641,045 4,369,397
Total Income 1,647,557170 1,037,706,416
Expenses
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid 33 121,556,948 35,828,547
Claims Ceded 34 (11,211134) (11.871,539)
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 35 762,570,685 493,688,251
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers 35 - -
Net Benefits and Claims Paid 872,916,499 517,645,259
Commission Expenses 36 254,279,500 172,119,923
Service Fees 37 13,701,517 8,977,561
Employee Benefits Expenses 38 145,223,279 104,311,834
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39 16,862,001 16,840,583
Impairment Losses 40 2,836,009 4,769,840
Other Expenses 41 236,053,179 163,676,245
Finance Cost 42 - -
Total Expenses 1,541,871,984 988,341,245
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net Profits of Associates 105,685,186 49,365,171
Accounted for Using Equity Method and Tax
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method 9 - -
Profit before Tax 105,685,186 49,365,171
Income Tax Expense(lncome) 43 (92,938,281) (63,591,255)
Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year 198,623,467 112,956,426
Earning Per Share 50
Basic EPS 1419 8.07
Diluted EPS 14.19 8.07

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our attached report of even date,

Kabi Phuyal
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Ram Hari Aryal-Chairman CA. BM Dhungana
Partner

Deep Chandra Regmi-Director

For B& B Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date: 19/11/2078
Lalitpur, Nepal

Sanjaya Adhikari-Director

Ashwini Kumar Thakur-Director
Jagat Bohara

Chief Financial Officer Yugesh Bhakta Bade Shrestha-Director
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year 198,623,467 112,956,426

Other Comprehensive Income

a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments - -
Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value - -

Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation - -

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using the - -
equity method

Income Tax Relating to Above Items - -

Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments - -
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets - -
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations - -

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using the - -
equity method

Income Tax Relating to Above ltems - -

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax - -

Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 198,623,467 112,956,426

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our attached report of even date,

Kabi Phuyal Dr. Ram Hari Aryal-Chairman CA. BM Dhungana
Chief Executive Officer Partner
Deep Chandra Regmi-Director

Sanjaya Adhikari-Director For B& B Associates
Chartered Accountants
Ashwini Kumar Thakur-Director Date: 19/11/2078
Jagat Bohara Lalitpur, Nepal
Chief Financial Officer Yugesh Bhakta Bade Shrestha-Director
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Particulars

Current Year

Fig.in NPR

Previous Year

Opening Balance in Retained Earnings

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss
Appropriations

i) Transfer to Catastrophe Reserves

ii) Transfer to Capital Reserves

i) Transfer to Regulatory Reserves

iv) Transfer to Fair Value Reserves

v) Transfer of Deferred Tax Reserves

vi) Others (to be Specified)

Less

i) Unrealised Gain on fluctuation of Foreign Exchange Currency
ii) Unrealised Income on unwinding of Financial Assets
iii) Actuarial Reserve

iv) Goodwill Recognised

v) Others (to be Specified)

127,825,694
198,623,467

(19.908,478)

(93,366,065)

90,548,771
112,956,426

(11,533,023)

(63,920,923)

Total Distributable Profits

213,174,618

128,051,251

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our attached report of even date,

Kabi Phuyal
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Ram Hari Aryal-Chairman

Deep Chandra Regmi-Director

Sanjaya Adhikari-Director

CA. BM Dhungana

Partner

For B& B Associates
Chartered Accountants

Ashwini Kumar Thakur-Director

Jagat Bohara
Chief Financial Officer

Yugesh Bhakta Bade Shrestha-Director

Date: 19/11/2078

Lalitpur, Nepal
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited

Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur

Statement of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Cash Flow From Operating Actvities:

Cash Received

Gross Premium Received

Commission Received

Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers

Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Others Income

1,414182,879

1.211134

5,641,045

918,863,575

11,871,539

4,369.397

Cash Paid

Gross Benefits and Claims Paid
Reinsurance Premium paid
Commission Paid

Service Fees Paid

Employee Benefits Expenses Paid
Other Expenses Paid

Income Tax Paid

(121,556,948)
(44,035,329)
(254,279,500)
(14,141,829)
(124,400,648)
(244,375,722)

(35,828,547)
(4.251189)
(172.119.923)
(9188,636)
(92.103,244)
(201938,923)

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1]

628,245,082

419,674,049

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Intangible Assets

Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets
Acquisitions of Investment Properties

Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties
Rental Income Received

Acquisitions of Property, Plant & Equipment
Proceeds From Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Payment for acquisition of Subsidiaries/ Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries
Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates
Purchase of Equity Instruments

Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments
Purchase of Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds

Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares
Purchase of Debentures

Proceeds from Sale of Debentures

Purchase of Bonds

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds

Investments in Deposits

Maturity of Deposits

Proceeds from Finance Lease

Loans Paid

Proceeds from Loans

Interest Income Received

Dividend Received

(36.725)
(9.601.195)
1.919.047

(800,000)

(375.306,000)

(479.000,000)

(115,743,623)
248,677,362

(183,625)

(26.605,474)
(2,680,000)

(25.000,000)

(48,468,000)

(282,000,000)

(58,694,622)
192,183,959

Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2]

(729,854,408)

(251,264,137)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Interest Paid

Proceeds from Borrowings
Repayment of Borrowings

Payment of Finance Lease

Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital
Share Issuance Cost Paid

Dividend Paid

Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3]

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3]

(101,609.326)

168,409,911

Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents

419,384,886

250,974,975

Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period

317,775,560

419,384,886

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash In Hand
Cheques In Hand
Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months)

350,937
86,889,768
83,000,000

218,862

245,000,000

Bal. With Banks

147,534,855

174,166,024

Notes:

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using Direct Method.
As per our attached report of even date,

Kabi Phuyal Dr. Ram Hari Aryal-Chairman CA. BM Dhungana

Chief Executive Officer Deep Chandra Regmi-Director Partner
Sanjaya Adhikari-Director For B& B Associates

Ashwini Kumar Thakur-Director Chartered Accountants

Yugesh Bhakta Bade Shrestha-Director Date: 19/11/2078
Lalitpur, Nepal

Jagat Bohara
Chief Financial Officer
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Note to the Fincancial Statement for the year ended Ashadh31, 2077 ( July 15, 2020)

1 General Information
IME Life Insurance Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 15 Ashwin 2065
and operated as life insurance company after obtaining license from Beema Samiti on 20 Ashad 2074 under
the Insurance Act 2049.
The registered office of the Company is located at Kathmandu Metropolitan city(KMC)-26, Lainchaur, Nepal

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 19th Falgun 2078.
2 Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB), as per the provisions of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal Act, 1997. These confirm, in material respect, to NFRS as issued by the
Nepal Accounting Standards Board. The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The term NFRS, includes all the standards and the related interpretations which are consistently
used.

(b) Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets &
Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:

i. Certain Financial Assets & Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value

ii. Defined Employee Benefits

iii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial valuation for
Liability Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods & services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1, or
2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable & the
significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

« Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

« Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.

(c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
reported balances of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date
of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the years presented.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements.

(d) Functional and Presentation Currency
These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except where
indicated otherwise.
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(e) Going Concern
The Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered
a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore, Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.

(f) Changes in Accounting Policies
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change an
accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the Financial
Statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, other events
or conditions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance, or cash flows.

(g) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
: t tandards i | and effecti
All the accounting standard made effective by the ASB are applied while preparing Financial Statement of
the Company.
: t tandards i | and _effecti
NFRS 16 & NFRS 17

3 Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements.
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
i) Recognition
Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for more than one
year and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

ii) Revaluation
After recognition as an asset, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably, have been
carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are being performed to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not materially differ from its carrying amount as at the reporting date. Valuation
of the land and buildings are undertaken by professionally qualified valuers.

An increase in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase
is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised in profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is
recognised in profit and loss. However, the decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income to the
extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any
revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred directly to retained earnings.

Difference between depreciation on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on
the asset’s original cost is transferred to retained earnings.

ili) Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land i.e. the Company’s Freehold
Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on Diminishing Balance Method (DBM)”
based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the management.
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The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting date and the
effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Rate of Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment based on DBM is categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Rate of Depreciation (In %) for DBM
Land Not Applicable

Leasehold Improvement Lease Period

Furniture & Fixtures 25%

Computers and IT Equipments 25%

Office Equipment 25%

Vehicles 20%

Other Assets 15%

iv) Derecognition
An item of Property and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no Future Economic Benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

v) Impairment of Assets

Assets are tested forimpairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the Asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair
value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. Assets that suffer an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. In case of such reversal, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had there been no impairment loss.

vi) Capital Work-In-Progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and
machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would be
transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress is stated at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

(b) Intangible Assets
i) Recognition
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at costless any accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not
capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in Statement of profit or loss in the year in which the
expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

ii) Amortization
Theusefullivesofintangible assets are assessedto be eitherfinite orindefinite. Anintangible asset shallbe
regarded as having anindefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is
no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected generate net cash inflow for the entity.

Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit or loss on straight line method (SLM) over the
estimated useful life of the intangible assets from the date that it is available for use since this most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the
asset. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit
orloss.
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Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM

Softwares 5 Years

iii) Derecognition
An Intangible Asset is derecognised when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

iv) Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible
Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

(c) Investment Properties

Cost Model:

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment
property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost, however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as
mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a
transfer from investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair
value at the date of change in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the Company accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.
The Company doesnot have any property held as investment property as at the end of the financial year.

(d) Cash & Cash Equivalent
For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash & Cash Equivalents includes Cash In
Hand, Cheques in Hands Bank Balances and short term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

(e) Financial Assets
i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its Financial Assets
at initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case of
Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii)Subsequent Measurement

a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)
A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of
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the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is
measured using effective interest rate method.

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual
terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets are measured at
fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive income.

c) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
These financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of profit or
loss.

iii) De-Recognition
A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows
from the Financial Asset. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company evaluates whether
it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset. In such cases,
the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not derecognized. Where the Company
retains control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing
involvement in the Financial Asset.

iv) Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred since the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Expected Credit Loss for Impairment of Financial Assets is applicable after implementation of NFRS 9
In accordance with NFRS 9 “Financial Instrument”, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL) Model,
for evaluating impairment of Financial Assets other than those measured at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss (FVTPL).

Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

The 12-months Expected Credit Losses (Expected Credit Losses that result from those default
events on the Financial Instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or
Full Lifetime Expected Credit Losses (Expected Credit Losses that result from all possible default events
over the life of the Financial Instrument).

For other assets, the Company uses 12 months Expected Credit Losses to provide for impairment loss
where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk Full Lifetime
ECL is used.

(f) Financial Liabilities
i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its Financial Liabilities
atinitial recognition.

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the Financial Liability.
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ii) Subsequent Measurement
After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
Effective Interest Method.
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

iii) De-Recognition
A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

(g) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

(h) Reinsurance Assets
Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the
amount which are recoverable from the reinsurers. These assets are created for the Reinsurer’s share of
Insurance Contract Liabilities.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all amounts due to it
under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that the
company will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduces the
carrying amount accordingly and is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

(i) Equity
Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

(j) Reserves and Funds

i) Share Premium: If the Company issues share capital at premium it receives extra amount other than
share capital, such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share premium is allowed
for distribution of bonus shares.

ii) Catastrophe Reserves: The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which is 10%
of the distributable profit for the year as per Regulator’s Directive.

iii) Fair Value Reserves: The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount of
Fair Value Gain recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per Regulator’s directive.

iv) Regulatory Reserves: Reserve created out of net profit in line with different circulars issued by
Beema Samiti.

v) Actuarial Reserves: Reseserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit
obligation resulting from, experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred); and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions.

vi) Cashflow Hedge Reserves: The exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular
risk associated with all or a component of a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction, and could affect profit or loss. Reserve represent effective portion of the gain or loss on
the hedging instrument recognized in other comprehensive income.
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vii) Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & equipments &
intangible assets, other than the reversal of earlier revalaution losses charged to profit or loss.

viii) Other Reserves: Reserve other than above reserves are categorized under other reserves.

(k)Insurance Contract Liabilities
i) Provision for unearned premiums
Unearned premiums reserve represents the portion of the premium written in the year but relating to
the unexpired term of coverage.
Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium represents the net portion of the gross written
premium transferred to the unearned premium reserve during the year to cover the unexpired period
of the polices.

ii) Outstanding claims provisions
Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but
not settled at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with related
claims handling costs.

iii) Unapportioned surplus
Unapportioned surplus where the amount are yet to be allocated or distributed to either policyholders
or shareholders by the end of the financial period, and held within the insurance contract liabilities.

Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed
to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over
unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking
account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant life insurance technical
provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the
deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability.

() Employee Benefits
i) Short Term Obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Statement of Financial Position.

ii) Post - Employment Benefits
- Defined Contribution Plan
The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution are recognized
as Employee Benefit Expense when they are due.

- Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position. Actuarial
Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur.
Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and
otherwise is amortized on a Straight Line Basis over the average period until the benefits become
vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Statement of Financial Position represents
the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as
reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset resulting from this calculation is limited to
past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to
the plan.
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iii) Long Term Employee Benefits
The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment has
been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the year
using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end
of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions.

iv) Termination
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits.
The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits.
The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.

(m) Revenue Recognition
i) Gross Premium
Gross premiums are recognised as soon as the amount of the premiums can be reliably measured.
First premium is recognised from inception date. At the end of the financial year, all due premiums are
accounted for to the extent that they can be reliably measured.

ii) Unearned Premium Reserves
Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a pro rata basis. The proportion
attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

iii) Premium on Reinsurance Accepted

Premium on reinsurance accepted comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover
provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the
policy incepts.Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of
reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are
those oportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date.
Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented as
negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because this is consistent
with how the business is managed.

iv) commission income
Commission Income is recognised on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they are
deferred and recognised over those future periods.

v) Investment income
Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by
using the Effective Interest Rate(EIR) method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the
effective yield of the financial asset are recognised as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.
Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

vi) Net realised gains and losses
Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on
occurrence of the sale transaction.

(n) Benefit, Claims and Expenses
i) Gross Benefits and Claims
Benefits and claims includes the cost of all claims arising during the year, including external claims
handling costs that are directly related to processing and settlements of claims. Benefits and claims
that are incurred during the financial year are recognised when a claimable event occurs and/or the
insurer is notified. Death, surrender and other benefits without due dates are treated as claims payable,
on the date of receipt of intimation of death of the assured or occurrence of contingency covered.
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iii) Long Term Employee Benefits
The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment has
been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the year
using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end
of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions.

iv) Termination
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits.
The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits.
The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.

(m) Revenue Recognition
i) Gross Premium
Gross premiums are recognised as soon as the amount of the premiums can be reliably measured.
First premium is recognised from inception date. At the end of the financial year, all due premiums are
accounted for to the extent that they can be reliably measured.

ii) Unearned Premium Reserves
Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a pro rata basis. The proportion
attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

iii) Premium on Reinsurance Accepted

Premium on reinsurance accepted comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover
provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the
policy incepts.Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of
reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are
those oportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date.
Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented as
negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because this is consistent
with how the business is managed.

iv) commission income
Commission Income is recognised on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they are
deferred and recognised over those future periods.

v) Investment income
Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by
using the Effective Interest Rate(EIR) method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the
effective yield of the financial asset are recognised as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.
Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

vi) Net realised gains and losses
Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on
occurrence of the sale transaction.

(n) Benefit, Claims and Expenses
i) Gross Benefits and Claims
Benefits and claims includes the cost of all claims arising during the year, including external claims
handling costs that are directly related to processing and settlements of claims. Benefits and claims
that are incurred during the financial year are recognised when a claimable event occurs and/or the
insurer is notified. Death, surrender and other benefits without due dates are treated as claims payable,
on the date of receipt of intimation of death of the assured or occurrence of contingency covered.

e
IMELIFE™  aiffes grdiaar 2008/00




ii) Reinsurance Claims
Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according to
the terms of the relevant contracts.

(o) Product Classification
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a
specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general
guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid
with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.
The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i) Endowment - This is a with profit plan that makes provisions for the family of the Life Assured in event of
his early death and also assures a lump sum at a desired age on maturity. It costs moderate premiums,
has high liquidity and is savings oriented.This plan is apt for people of all ages and social groups who
wish to protect their families from a financial setback that may occur owing to their demise.

ii) Anticipated - This scheme provides for specific periodic payments of partial survival benefits during
the term of the policy itself so long as the policy holder is alive. It is therefore suitable to meet specified
financial requirements needed for occasions like Brata bandha, Academic Graduations etc. Animportant
feature of planis thatin the event of death at any time within the policy term, the death claim comprises
full sum assured without deducting any of the survival benefit amounts, which have already been paid.
It is also with profit plan.

iii) Endowment Cum Whole Life - This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole Life
with profit plan. It provides financial protection against death throughout the lifetime of the life assured
with the provision of payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the policy to the assured in case of his
survival.

iv) Whole Life - This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole Life with profit plan.
It provides financial protection against death throughout the lifetime of the life assured with the
provision of payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the policy to the assured in case of his survival.

v) Foreign Employment Term - Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance
that guarantees payment of a stated death benefit during a specified term. Once the term expires,
the policyholder can renew it for another term, convert the policy to permanent coverage, or allow
the policy to terminate.

vi) Other Term - Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that guarantees
payment of a stated death benefit during a specified term. Once the term expires, the policyholder can
renew it for another term, convert the policy to permanent coverage, or allow the policy to terminate.

vii) Special - Special Term insurance is a modified version of term insurance with added benefits.

viii) Others to be Specified- Life insurance policies other than above mentioned products are classified
as others.

(p) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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(q) Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash
payments are disclosed as cash flows.

(r) Leases

Finance Leases

Leases in which the Company has substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as Finance Leases. Assets acquired under Finance Leases are capitalised at the lower of the Fair Value of
the Leased Assets at the inception of the Lease Term & the Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments.
Lease Payments are apportioned between the Finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The Finance Charge is allocated to periods during the Lease Term at a constant periodic Rate of
Interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating Lease

Leases in which the Company doesn’t have substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as Operating Leases. Payment made under Operating Leases are charged to Statement of Profit
& Loss on a Straight Line Basis.

(s) Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.
i) Current Tax
Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate.
Provision for Current Income Tax is made forthe Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after considering
tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates
and the prevailing tax laws.

ii) Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets &
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their tax bases. Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities
are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of
Assets & Liabilities and their carrying amount in Financial Statements, except when the Deferred Tax
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an Asset or Liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable Profits or Loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible Temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary differences. The carrying
amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the Deferred Tax
Asset to be utilized.

(t) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets
(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’'s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to
determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognized as interest expense.

Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books as a matter of abundant precaution and
conservative approach based on management'’s best estimate. However, Management believes that
chances of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any probable
cash outflow.
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(ii) Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events
due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow
of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed
on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

(iii) Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are
not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

(u) Functional Currency & Foreign Currency Transactions
The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the Company’s
Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies
other than the Company’'s Functional Currency i.e. Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

(v) Earnings Per Share
Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the
Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

For diluted earning per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(w) Operating Segment
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment”.

Company’'sIncome & Expensesincludinginterestare considered as part of un-allocable Income & Expenses

which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company’s Asset & Liabilities are considered as part
of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the Financial Statements
As At Ashadh 31, 2077 (15th July, 2020)

4 Intangible Assets Fig.in NPR
Particulars Softwares Licenses b:;r;z::siig:;) Total
Gross carrying amount
As at Shrawan 1, 2076 1,257,690 - - 1,257,690
Additions
Acquisition 36,725 36,725

Internal Development - - - -
Business Combination (to be Specified) - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Revaluation - - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 1,294,415 - - 1,294,415
Accumulated amortization and impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2076 255,349 - - 255,349
Additions 203,488 - - 203,488

Disposals - - - -

Impairment losses - - - -

Impairment reversal -

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 458,837 - - 458,837
Net Carrying Amount

Net Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2076 1,002,341 - - 1,002,341
Net Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 835,578 - - 835,578
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the Financial Statements
As At Ashadh 31, 2077 (15th July, 2020 )

6 Investment Properties Fig.in NPR

Particulars Land Building Total

Gross carrying amount
As at Shrawan 1, 2076 - - -
Additions - - -

Disposals - - -

Transfer/ adjustments - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - -

Depreciation and impairment
As at Shrawan 1, 2076 - - -

Depreciation - - -

Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment reversal - - -
Transfer/ adjustments - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - -
Capital work-in-progress

As at Shrawan 1, 2076

Additions - - -

Capitalisation - - -

Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment reversal - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - -
Net Carrying Amount

As at Ashadh 31, 2076 - - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - -

(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss for investment properties

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Rental income

Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income - -
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income - -
Profit from investment properties before depreciation - -

Depreciation - -

Profit from investment properties - -

i
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(i) Contractual obligations: Refer note no. 54 For disclosure of contractual obligations relating to investment

properties.

(iii) Fair value of investment properties:

Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Land - -
Building - -
Total - -

7 Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Intagible Assets (668,218) (18.172)
Property, Plant and Equipment (279.794) (910,372)
Financial Assets at FVTPL - -
Financial Assets at FVTOCI - -
Provision for Leave Encashment 2,124,277 1,932,375
Defined Benefit Plan(Specify the name)
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets 1,901,462 1192,460
Impairment Loss on Other Assets - -
Tax Losses 170,566,412 80,924,840
Other (to be Specified) - -
Rent Equilization 1,754,708 1,089,087
Gratuity Fund 3,447,020 1,269,585
Total 178,845,868 85,479,803

Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liablities)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As at Shrawan 1, 2076 85,479,803 21,558,881
Charged/(Credited) to Statement of Profit or Loss 93,366,065 63,920,923
Charged/(Credited) to Other Comprehensive Income -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 178,845,869 85,479,803

8 Investments in Subsidiaries
Particulars CurrentYear Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Susidiaries
Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Previous Year

Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

Current Year
Particulars
Cost
........... Shares of Rs. ... each of ....... Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs. ... each of ....... Ltd. - -

i
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Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries Fig. in NPR

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

........... Shares of Rs. ... each of ....... Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs. ... each of ....... Ltd. - - - -
Total - -

Information Relating to Subsidiaries

Percentage of Ownership

Particulars -
Current Year Previous Year

........... Shares of Rs. ... each of ....... Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs. ... each of ....... Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs. ... each of ....... Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs. ... each of ....... Ltd. - -

9 Investments in Associates

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Associates - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total - -

Investment in Quoted Associates

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Fair  (or) Equity Fair  (or) Equity
Cost  value  Method  ©°S' value  Method
........... Shares of Rs. ... each of ....... Ltd. - - - - - -
........... Shares of Rs. ... each of ....... Ltd. - - - - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Fair  (or) Equity . (or) Equity
Cost Value Method Cost Fair Value Method

........... Shares of Rs. ... each of ...... Ltd. - - - - - -
........... Shares of Rs. ... each of ...... Ltd. - - - - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - - - - -

Total - - - - - -

9
IMELIFE™ g g covi/oo  [IO)L




Information Relating to Associates Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Name - -
Place of Business - -
Accounting Method - -
% of Ownership - -
Current Assets - -
Non-Current Assets - -
Current Liabilities - -

Non-Current Liabilities - -

Income - -

Net Profit or Loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income - -

Total Comprehensive Income - -

Company'’s Share of Profits - -

Net Profit or Loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Income Tax Expenses - -
Net Profit or Loss from Continuing Operations - -
Post Tax Profit or Loss from Discontinued Operations - -
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income - -
Company's Share of Profits - -
Net Profit or Loss - -

Other Comprehensive Income - -

Total - -
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10 Investments

Fig. in NPR

Particulars CurrentYear  Previous Year
Investments measured at Amortised Cost
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
ii) Investment in Debentures 423,774,000 48,468,000
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal - -
Government)
iv) Fixed Deposit of “A” Class Financial Institutions 1.486,500,000 1,536.000.000
v) Fixed Deposit of Infrastructure Banks - -
vi) Fixed Deposits in “B” Class Financial Institutions 857,500,000 266,000,000
vii) Fixed Deposits in “C” Class Financial Institutions 20,000,000 -
viii) Others (to be specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Investments measured at FVTOCI
i) Investment in Equity Instruments(Quoted) -
ii) Investment in Equity Instruments(Unquoted) 51,000,000 50,200,000
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds - -
iv) Investment in Debentures - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - -
Investments measured at FVTPL
i) Investment in Equity Instruments(Quoted) - -
ii) Investment in Equity Instruments(Unquoted) - -
i) Investment in Mutual Funds - -
iv) Others (to be Specified) -
Total 2,838,774,000 1,900,668,000

a) Details of Impairment Losses

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal

Government)
Fixed Deposit of “A” Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit of Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposits in “B” Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposits in “C" Class Financial Institutions

Others (to be specified)

Total

i
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b) Investments having expected maturities less than 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Fig.in NPR
Previous Year

Investment in Equity Instruments

Investment in Mutual Funds

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions
Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds

Fixed Deposit with “A” Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposits with “B” Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposits with “C” Class Financial Institutions

Others (to be specified)

416,500,000

635,000,000

351,500,000

48,500,000

Total

1,051,500,000

400,000,000

C) The Company has earmarked fixed deposit amounting to NPR 1,301,000,000 to Insurance Board.

11Loans
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Loans at Amortised Cost
Loan to Associates - -
Loan to Employees 22197749 10,573,935
Loan to Agent 32,900,048 19,885,160
Loan to Policyholders 131,722,948 40,618,026
Others (to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses (7.605,850) (4,769,840)
Total 179,214,895 66,307,282
a) Expected recovery period within 12 months:
Particulars CurrentYear Previous Year
Loan to Associates - -
Loan to Employees 593136 -
Loan to Agent - -
Loan to Policyholders - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 593,136 -
12 Reinsurance Assets
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Reinsurance Assets on:

Policy liabilities and provisions
Provision for unearned premiums
Premium deficiency reserve
Outstanding Claim reserve

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

i
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13 Insurance Receivables

Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Receivable from Reinsurers 3,288,178 1,748,544
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies - -
Other (to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 3,288,178 1,748,544

a) Expected recovery period within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Receivable from Reinsurers 3,288,178 1,748,544
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies - -
Other (to be Specified) - -
Total 3,288,178 1,748,544
14 Other Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Capital Advances - -
Prepaid Expenses 1,584,536 738,910
Claim Advances -
Advance To Suppliers 760,431 208,969
Staff Advances 2,948,832 3,205,623
VAT Receivable -
Printing and Stationery Stocks -
Stamp Stocks -
Deferred Expenses - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses -
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses - -
Finance Lease Receivable - -
Others: - -
i) House Rent Advance 138,538 1129,733
ii) Agent Advance 3,215 4,415
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 5,435,552 5,287,651
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a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Capital Advances - -
Prepaid Expenses 1,584,536 738,910
Claim Advances - -
Advance To Suppliers 760,431 208,969
Staff Advances 2,948,832 3,205,623
VAT Receivable - -
Printing and Stationery Stocks - -
Stamp Stocks - -
Deferred Expenses - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses - -
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses - -
Finance Lease Receivable - -
Others: - -
i) House Rent Advance 138,538 1129,733
ii) Agent Advance 3,215 4,415
Total 5,435,552 5,287,651
15 Other Financial Assets
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Security Deposits 412,200 412,200
Accrued Interest 28,943,951 9159,912
Interest Receivable from Policyholders 6,455,622 1,476,732
Other Receivables 4133 16,856,291
Other Deposits - -
Sundry Debtors 102,587 -
Others: - -
Interest Receivable from Agent Loan 480,680 247,362
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 36,399.174 28,152,498
a) Expected maturities within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Security Deposits - -
Accrued Interest 28,943,951 9159912
Interest Receivable from Policyholders 6,455,622 1,476,732
Other Receivables 4133 16,856,291
Other Deposits - -
Sundry Debtors 102,587 -
Others: - -
Interest Receivable from Agent Loan 480,680 247,362
Total 35,986,974 27,740,298
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(ii) Preference Share Capital

Fig.in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Authorised Capital:
....... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - -
.......irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - -
Issued Capital:
....... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - -
.......irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - -
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:
....... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - -
.......Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - -
Total - -
Shareholding Structure of Share Capital
Particulars Number of Shares Percentage

CurrentYear PreviousYear CurrentYear Previous Year
Promoters
Government of Nepal - -
Nepalese Organized Institutions 4,247,000 4,247,000 30.34% 30.34%
Nepalese Citizen 9,753,000 9,753,000 69.66% 69.66%
Foreigner - -
Others (to be Specified)
Total (A) 14,000,000 14,000,000 100% 100%
Other than Promoters
General Public - - 0% 0%
Others (to be Specified) - - 0% 0%
Total (B) - - - -
Total (A+B) 14,000,000 14,000,000 100% 100%

D
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Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 1% of the total shares in the Company:

Fig.in NPR
Particulars Number of Shares Percentage

Current Year PreviousYear CurrentYear Previous Year
Across Money Transfer 288,750 288,750 2.06% 2.06%
Asian Distributor 500,000 500,000 3.57% 3.57%
Mr. Bishnu Kumar Agarwal 300,000 300,000 214% 214%
Mr. Chandra Prasad Dhakal 2,262,500 2,262,500 16.16% 16.16%
Mr. Hem Raj Dhakal 2,262,500 2,262,500 16.16% 16.16%
DD Investment Pvt. Ltd 289,250 289,250 2.07% 2.07%
Global IME Bank Ltd. 2,000,000 2,000,000 14.29% 14.29%
Hathway Investment Ltd. 199,000 199,000 1.42% 1.42%
IME Ltd. 600,000 600,000 4.29% 4.29%
Mr. Kalyan Gurung 267,500 267,500 1.91% 1.91%
Mr. Kamal Poudel 200,000 200,000 1.43% 1.43%
Mr. Min Bahadur Gurung 465,000 465,000 3.32% 3.32%
Mr. Nawaraj Nepal 350,000 350,000 2.50% 2.50%
Nimisha Investment Pvt. Ltd. 195,000 195,000 1.39% 1.39%
Mrs. Sabitri Gurung 267,500 267,500 1.91% 1.91%
Mr. Sandeep Agarwal 250,000 250,000 1.79% 1.79%
Mr. Suraj Shrestha 200,000 200,000 1.43% 1.43%
Mr. Jeewan Kumari Aryal 150,000 150,000 1.07% 1.07%
Mr. Arjun Paudel Sharma 150,000 150,000 1.07% 1.07%
Mr. Ambika Prasad Paudel 150,000 150,000 1.07% 1.07%
Total 11,347,000 11,347,000 81.05% 81.05%

17 (b) Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Share Application Money Pending Allotment - -
Total - -

17 (c) Share Premium

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As at Shrawan 1, 2076 - -

Increase due to Issue of shares at premium - -

Decrease due Issue of bonus shares - -
Transaction costs on issue of share - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 - -

D
IMELFE™ e grerdear 2006/00




16 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Cash In Hand 350,937 218,862

Cheques In Hand 86,889,768 -

Bank Balances

i) Balance with “A” Class Financial Institutions 123144115 165,508,931

ii) Balance with “B” Class Financial Institutions 24,390,739 8,657,093

iii) Balance with “C" Class Financial Institutions - -

Less: Impairment Losses

Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months 83,000,000 245,000,000

Others (to be Specified) - -

Less: Impairment Losses - -

Total 317,775,560 419,384,886
17 (a) Share Capital

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Shrawan 1, 2076 1,400,000,000 1,400,000,000

Additions during the year

i) Bonus Share Issue - -

ii) Share Issue - -

As at Ashadh 31, 2077 1,400,000,000 1,400,000,000

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2076
Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2076
Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

Total

1,400,000,000

1,400,000,000

(i) Ordinary Shares

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Authorised Capital:

30,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 3,000.000,000 3,000,000,000
Issued Capital:

20,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

14,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 1.400,000,000 1,400,000,000

Total

1,400,000,000

1,400,000,000
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17 (d) Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars

Current Year

Fig. in NPR

Previous Year

As at Shrawan 1, 2076
Additions

Utilizations

24,154,900
19,908,478

12,621,878
11,633,023

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

44,063,378

24,154,900

17 (e) Retained Earnings

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Shrawan 1, 2076

Net Profit or Loss

Iltems of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations
Transfer to/ from reserves

Capital Reserves

Catastrophe Reserves

Regulatory Reserves

Fair Value Reserves

Actuarial Reserves

Revaluation Reserves

Cash Flow Hedge Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserves

Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Transfer on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Transfer on Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI
Issue of Bonus Shares

Transaction costs on issue of Shares

Dividend Paid

Dividend Distribution Tax

Transfer to Insurance Contract Liability

Others (to be Specified)

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

128,051,251
198,397,910

(19.908,478)

(93,366,065)

213,174,618

90,548,771
112,956,426

(11,533,023)
(63.920,923)

128,051,251

17 (f) Other Equity

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Reserves
Regulatory Reserves

Fair Value Reserves
Actuarial Reserves
Revaluation Reserves
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves
Deferred Tax Reserves

Transfer to Insurance Contract Liability

1,559,664

178,845,868

1,559,664

85,479,803

Total

180,405,532

87,039,467
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18 Provisions Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Provisions for employee benefits
i) Provision for Leave Encashment 13,788,078 7,729,499

ii) Defined Benefit Plans (Specify the name) - -
iii) Termination Benefits - -

iv) Other employee benefit obligation (to be Specified) - -
Provision for tax related legal cases - -
Provision for non-tax legal cases - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 13,788,078 7.729.499

(a) Additional Disclosure of Provisions
Additions Utilised Reversed

Description Opening During the Duringthe Duringthe Unv_vmdlng of Closing
Balance Discount Balance
Year Year Year
Provision for tax related legal _ _ _ _ _
cases
Provision for non-tax legal _ _ _ _ _
cases

Others (to be Specified) - - - - - -

b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Provisions for employee benefits
i) Provision for Leave Encashment 1,675,552 939123

ii) Defined Benefit Plans (Specify the name)

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligation (to be Specified)

Provision for Staff Bonus -
Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax legal cases

Others (to be Specified)

Provision on Agent Loan - -
Total 1,675,552 939123

19 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

Particulars Current Year  Previous Year

Policy liabilities and provisions 1,.250,498,594 554,774,598
Bonus Liability 185,160,764 146,067,968
Unallocated Surplus 27,526,348 560,207
Provision for unearned premiums 184,851,046 172,538,552
Premium deficiency reserve - -
Outstanding Claim Reserve 1190,250 402,500

Fair Value Reserves - -
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves - -
Actuarial Reserves - -
Revaluation Reserves - -
Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties - -
Share of Profit of Associates accounted as per Equity Method - -
Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Associates Accounted for - -
using the Equity Method

Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 1,649,227,003 874,343,822
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the Financial Statements
As At Ashadh 31, 2077 (15th July, 2020)

20 Insurance Payables Fig.in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Payable to Reinsurance Company 28,435,737 2,598,063
Payable to Other Insurance Company - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 28,435,737 2,598,063

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Payable to Reinsurance Company 28,435,737 -
Payable to Other Insurance Company - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 28,435,737 -

21 Current Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities (Net)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Income Tax Liabilities (410,434) (329.,668)
Income Tax Assets 97,328,905 56,561,490
Total 96,918,471 56,231,822

22 Loans and Borrowings
Particulars CurrentYear Previous Year
Bond - -
Debenture - -

Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution - -
Bank Overdraft - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total - -

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Bond - -
Debenture - -

Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution
Bank Overdraft
Others (to be Specified)

Total

e
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23 Other Financial Liabilities

Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Redeemable Preference Shares - -
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares - -
Payable to Agent 108,595,533 65,702,733
Refundable Share Application Money - -
Sundry Creditors 1,366,277 273,742
Retention and Deposit - -
Short-term employee benefits payable
i) Salary Payable 2,446,885 2,250,468
ii) Bonus Payable 17,227,818 14,860,230
iii) Provident Fund Payable 2,304,769 112,340
iv) Gratuity Payable 8.497108 5,078,341
Audit Fee Payable 661,050 446,350
Dividend Payable - -
Others
House Rent Payable 7,018,833 4,356,350
Expense Payable 11,244,300 8.139,655
Total 159,362,573 101,220,210
Payable within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Redeemable Preference Shares - -
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares - -
Payable to Agent 108,595,533 65,702,733
Refundable Share Application Money - -
Sundry Creditors 1,366,277 273,742
Retention and Deposit - -
Short-term employee benefits payable - -
i) Salary Payable 2,446,885 2,250,468
ii) Bonus Payable 17,227,818 14,860,230
i) Provident Fund Payable 2,304,769 112,340
iv) Gratuity Payable 8.497108 5,078,341
Audit Fee Payable 661,050 446,350
Dividend Payable - -
Others - -
House Rent Payable 7,018,833 4,356,350
Expense Payable 8,732,944 6,005,843
Total 156,851,217 99,086,398

e
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24 Other Liabilities

Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
TDS Payable 23,439,813 8,272,726
VAT Payable -
Unidentified Premium 107152 100,137
Advance Premium 521,009 434,200
Insurance Service Fee Payable 14,021,293 9188,636
Lease Liability - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission income - -
Deferred Income - -
Others
Payable Under OYVS 1,277,634 765,804
Others 836,843 389,971
Total 40,203,744 19.151,474
Payable within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
TDS Payable 23,439,813 8,272,726
VAT Payable - -
Unidentified Premium 107152 100,137
Advance Premium 521,009 434,200
Insurance Service Fee Payable 14,021,293 9188,636
Lease Liability - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission income - -
Deferred Income - -
Others - -
Payable Under OYVS 1,277,634 765,804
Others 836,843 389,971
Total 40,203,744 19151,474
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29 Investment Income

72

e
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Fig.in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Interest Income from Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Costs
i) Fixed Deposit with “A” Class Financial Institutions 188,415,440 164,094,283
ii) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank - -
iii) Fixed Deposit with “B" Class Financial Institutions 54,303,618 27,652,393
iv) Fixed Deposit with “C” Class Financial Instituions 2,163,837 -
v) Debentures 23,318,674 1,010,845
vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - -
vii) Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
viii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit - -
ix) Policyholder Loan 8,380,314 1,626,931
x) Agent Loan 2,418,930 1,450,257
xi) Employee Loan 1,470,077 497,386
xii) Interest Income on call deposit 3,606,046 6,488,508
Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI
i) Interest Income on Debenture - -
ii) Dividend Income - -
iii) Other Interest Income(to be specified) - -
Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL
i) Dividend Income - -
ii) Other Interest Income(to be specified) - -
Rental Income - -
Others (to be specified) -
Total 284,076,936 202,820,603
30 Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes
Particulars CurrentYear Previous Year

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments

ii) Mutual Fund

iii) Others (to be specified)

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges
Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges
Gains/ (Losses) of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedge

Others (to be specified)

Total




31 Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)

Particulars

Current Year

Fig.in NPR
Previous Year

Realised Gains/ (Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments
i) Mutual Fund
iii) Others (to be specified)

Realised Gains/ (Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets at Amortised Costs

i) Debentures
i) Bonds
iii) Others (to be specified)

Total

32 Other Income
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

i) Employee Loan

ii) Bonds

iii) Others (to be Specified)

Foreign Exchange Income

Interest Income from Finance Lease
Amortization of Deferred Income
Profit from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Stamp Income

Others

Late Fee on Premium

Others

123,893

2,227,474
3,289,678

672,959

808,317
2,888,121

Total

5,641,045

4,369,397

33 Gross Benefits and Claims Paid

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Gross Benefits and Claims Paid

121,656,948

35,828,547

Total

121,556,948

35,828,547

34 Claims Ceded

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Claims Ceded to Reinsurers

1,211134

11,871,539

Total

11,211,134

11,871,539

)
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Portfolio-wise detail of Gross Benefits and Claims Paid and Claims Ceded Fig.in NPR

Gross Benefits and Claims Net Claims Paid before

74

Particulars . Claims Ceded Change in Contract
Paid A
Liabilities
Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Current Year

Year Year Year Year Year
Endowment 4,084,477 6,760,940 300,000 3,467,463 3,784,477 3,293,477
Anticipated Endowment 76,463,270 - 2,300,000 - 74163,270 -
Endowment Cum Whole Life 4,878,947 103,500 - - 4,878,947 103,500
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 36,130,255 28,964,107 8.611,134 8,404,076 27,519121 20,560,031
Other Term - - - - - -
Special Term - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - -
Total 121,556,948 35,828,547 1,211134 11,871,539 110,345,814 23,957,008
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Details of Gross Benefits and Claims Paid

Current Year Fig.in NPR
Particulars Death Claim  Maturity Claim Ma tl;?f:’tt;atl:llya im VZ:"J?&:?; C?;:‘r:; Gross Claim c(::i;: Net Claim
Endowment 2,293,035 - - 1,791,442 - 4,084,477 300,000 3,784,477
Anticipated Endowment 3,625,000 - 68,690,500 447,770 - 76,463,270 2,300,000 74,163,270
Endowment Cum Whole Life - - - 4,878,947 - 4,878,947 - 4,878,947
Whole Life - - - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 36,130,255 - - - - 36,130,255 8,611,134 27,519121
Other Term - - - - - - - -
Special Term - - - - - - - -

Others (to be Specified) - - - - - - - _

Total 42,048,290 - 68,690,500 10,818,158 - 121,556,948 11,211,134 110,345,814

Previous Year
Maturity Partially Surrender Other Claim

Particulars Death Claim Claim Maturity Claim  Value Claim Claims Gross Claim Ceded Net Claim

Endowment 6,760,940 - - - - 6,760,940 3,467,463 3,293,477
Anticipated Endowment - - - - - - -
Endowment Cum Whole Life 103,500 - - - - 103,500 - 103,500
Whole Life - - - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 28,964,107 - - - - 28,964,107 8,404,076 20,560,031
Other Term - - - - - - - -
Special Term - - - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - - - -
Total 35,828,547 - - - - 35,828,547 11,871,539 23,957,008
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited

Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

35 Change in Contract Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Fig.in NPR

Previous Year

(a) Gross Change in Contract Liabilities

Policy liabilities and provisions
Bonus Liability

Unallocated Surplus

Premium deficiency reserve
Outstanding Claim reserve
Others (to be Specified)

695,723,997
39.092,796
26,966,141

787,750

439,420,696
78,105,875
(24,240,820)

402,500

Total Gross Change in Contract Liabilities

762,570,685

493,688,251

(b) Change in Reinsurance Assets

Policy liabilities and provisions
Premium deficiency reserve
Outstanding Claim Reserve
Others (to be Specified)

Total Change in Reinsurance Assets

Net Change in Contract Liabilities

762,570,685

493,688,251

Portfolio-wise detail of Net Change in Contract Liabilities

Gross Change in Contract Changein Net Change in Contract
Liabilities Reinsurance Assets Liabilities
Particulars
. Current Previous Current Previous
Current Year Previous Year
Year Year Year Year

Endowment 354,487,638 233,265,809 - 354,487,638 233,265,809
Anticipated Endowment 321,063,186 183,981,876 - 321,063,186 183,981,876
Endowment Cum Whole Life 86,232,110 76,038,071 - 86,232,110 76,038,071
Whole Life - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 787,750 402,500 - 787,750 402,500
Other Term - - - - -
Special Term - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - -
Total 762,570,685 493,688,256 - 762,570,685 493,688,256
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36 Commission Expenses

Fig.in NPR

Particulars CurrentYear Previous Year
Commission Expenses on Insurance Contracts 254,279,500 172119,923
Others (To be specified) - -
Total 254,279,500 172,119,923

Portfolio-wise detail of Commission Expenses

Commission Expenses on

Insurance Contracts Others Commission Expense
Particulars Previous Current  Previous Previous

Current Year Year Year Year Current Year Year
Endowment 90,150,203 78,077,903 - - 90,150,203 78,077,903
Anticipated Endowment 146,974,549 70,759,617 - - 146,974,549 70,759,617
Endowment Cum Whole Life 16,953,906 23,277,285 - - 16,953,906 23,277,285
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term - - - - - -
Other Term 200,842 5117 - - 200,842 5117
Special Term - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - -
Total 254,279,500 172,119,923 - - 254,279,500 172,119,923

)
IMELIFE™  affes yrear coca/co WATA




gzo'6LL'CLL 00S°'6L2'VSC  LYL'9LV'VE 02S‘0L6'YL voZ'LLe’s er9'66v'e LLe'Lee’eeL L£2'698°SLL lejoL
- - - - - - - - (payloads aq 03) s1ayl0
- - - - - - - - wJa] [eloads
LLL'S Z¢¥8'00¢ - - - - LLL'S Z¥8'00¢C w8l Jsuio
- - - - - - - - wiig) JuswAoidwg ubiaio4
- - - - - - - - 9417 3|0ym
§8c'LLT'eT 906'256'9L LLS'C6S'S Lr9'L88°0L ovL'L8c’e L86TLY'L 629°'¢0t'SlL 6LT'26S'Y 9417 8J0ym winj Juswmopuy
L19'6SL°0L 6YS'vL69TL Lyt'628°8 6Ct'LL9'6C - 821'89 9LL'026'L9 286'v6T'LLL juswmopuz pajedionuy
206'LL0'8L ¢£02'0SL'06 06L'¥S0°0¢C LSYLLY v S ¥2l'020°'e 8LG'8SL'L 686'C66'VS ¥22'086'cS juswmopu3
1eap SNOIAALd  JBOA JUAIIND  JB3A ShOlAald JeaA Jualing  Je3A SNOINBIJ JBAA JUBLIND  JBIA SNOIAALd  JBIA JUdLINg
e301 wniwald [emauay wniwaud ajbuis wniwalid Jeap sJdejnanijJed

ddN urbiq

uo asuadx3 uoissiwwon

uo asuadx3 uoissiwwo)

3S414 uo asuadx3 uoisiwwo)

sasuadx3 uoIssIWWo JO sjieyad

(n)
IME'-'F E” i ferdast 2006/00



37 Service Fees

Fig.in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Gross Service Fees 14,141,829 9.188,636
Reinsurer’'s Share of Service Fees (440,312) (211,075)
Total 13,701,517 8,977,561

Portfolio-wise detail of Service Fees

Reinsurer’s Share of

Service Fees .
Service Fees

Net Service Fees

Particulars Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year
Endowment 5,332,403 3,800,731 77,626 42,768 5,254,776 3,757,963
Anticipated Endowment 6,660,585 3,072,547 201181 40,865 6,459,404 3,031,682
Endowment Cum Whole Life 1,266,010 1,302,078 27,707 36,706 1,238,303 1,265,372
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 861,908 1,012,768 131,409 90,735 730,499 922,033
Other Term 20,922 512 2,388 1 18,534 511
Special Term - - - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - - - -
Total 14,141,829 9188,636 440,312 211,075 13,701,517 8,977,561
38 Employee Benefits Expenses
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salaries 60,633,121 43126,344
Allowance 38,917,968 28,433,158
Defined Benefit Plans
i) Gratuity - -
ii) Others (To be specified) - -
Defined Contribution Plans
i) Provident Fund 6,056,669 4,311,078
ii) Others (Gratuity) 5,046,042 3,578,623
Leave Encashment 9,079,833 6,723,571
Termination Benefits - -
Festival Allowances 5,804,626 4,769,844
Training Expenses 2,047,579 1,712,403
Uniform Expenses - 676,080
Medical Expenses 2,788,368 3,614,745
Staff Insurance Expenses 130,190 106,469
Staff Welfare - -
Bonus 11,742,798 5,485,019
Others (To be specified) - -
Staff Incentives 2,976,087 1,774,500
Total 145,223,279 104,311,834

0
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39 Depreciation & Amortization Expenses
Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note. 5) 16,658,514 16,599,610
Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note. 6) - -

Amortization of Intangible Assets (Refer Note. 4) 203,488 240,973
Total 16,862,001 16,840,583

40 Impairment Losses

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Impairment Losses on PPE, Investment Properties and Intangible Assets

i) Property, Plant and Equipment - -
ii) Investment Properties - -
iii) Intangible Assets - -
Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

i) Investment - -
ii) Loans(Agent Loan) 2,836,009 4,769,840
iii) Other Financial Assets - -
iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - -
Impairment Losses on Other Assets

i) Reinsurance Assets - -
ii) Insurance Receivables - -
iii) Lease Receivables - -
iv) Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 2,836,009 4,769,840

i
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41 Other Expenses

Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Rent Expenses 28,772,036 25,673,276
Electricity and Water 1,750,147 1,663,018
Repair & Maintenance
i) Building 45,567 91,429
ii) Vehicle 230,017 21,226
iii) Office Equipments 667,338 59,555
iv) Others 230,887 146,117
Telephone & Communication 5,709,107 5,264,738
Printing & Stationary 3,852,922 4,340,570
Office Consumable Expenses 529,298 505,292
Travelling Expenses
i) Domestic 6,615,987 5,840,721
ii) Foreign - -
Agent Training 1,845,844 1,424,028
Other Agent Expenses 148,198,452 89,080,374
Insurance Premium 756,867 599,922
Security Expenses 340,130 392,850
Legal and Consulting Expenses 1,590,781 1,721,393
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 43,971 83,165
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 9,392,002 3,083,607
Business Promotion 1,037,504 2,495,858
Guest Entertainment 146,671 142,066
Gift and Donations 933,960 173,950
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses
i) Meeting Allowances 855,000 631,000
i) Other Allowances 1,463,005 1,407,192
Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses
i) Meeting Allowances 141,000 195,850
ii) Other Allowances 6,304 15,445
Annual General Meeting Expenses 450,000 400,000
Audit Related Expenses
i) Statutory Audit 378,550 282,500
ii) Tax Audit - -
iii) Long Form Audit Report - -
iv) Other Fees - -
v) Internal Audit 280,000 226,000
vi) Others 542,994 286,516
Bank Charges 38,385 56,707
Fee and Charges 2,433,653 2,055,390
Postage Charges 291,630 401,490
Others (to be Specified) -
FE Pool Management Expense 3,976,661 2,912,664
Medical fee 2,004,236 1,915,129
Outsourcing Expenses 1,688,851 1,702,403
Staff Conference and Seminar Expenses 2,637,735 2,406,542
Utility & Janotorial 1.990.297 1,728,113
Annual Maintenance Charge 1143,852 636,119
Wages 423,227 665,240
Other Office Expenses 2,618,309 2,758,792
Total 236,053,179 163,676,245
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42 Finance Cost

Particulars

Current Year

Fig.in NPR
Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Provisions

Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs
Interest Expenses - on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs
Interest Expenses - Finance Lease

Others (to be Specified)

Total

43 Income Tax Expense(lncome)
(a) Income Tax Expense(Income)
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Tax

i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year

i) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods

Deferred Tax For The Year

i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences
ii) Changes in tax rate

iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
iv) Write-down or reversal

v) Others (to be Specified)

410,434
17,350

(93.366,065)

329,668

(63.920,923)

Income Tax Expense/(Income)

(92,938,281)

(63,591,255)

(b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & Accounting Profit

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Accounting Profit Before Tax 105,685,186 49,365171
Applicable Tax Rate 25% 25%
Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit 26,421,297 12,341,293
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose

i) Net Claim Benefit Paid 27,586,454 5,989,252
if) Change in Insurance Contract Liability 190,642,671 123,422,063
iii) Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 1,210,710 1,222,618
iii) Employee Benefit Expenses 2,548,295 1,971,412
iii) Other Expenses 699,682 1,243,597
iii) Impairment Losses 709,002 1192,460
Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction - -
i) Premium Income (339.459,797) (207.629.104)
ii) Gain on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 115 -
Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods - -
i) - -
i) - -
Add/ (Less): Others - -
i) - -
ii) - -
Income Tax Expense (89.641,573) (60.246,410)
Effective Tax Rate -85% -122%
Income Tax Expense as per above Table (89.641,573) (60,246,410)
Tax Rate 25% 25%
Taxable Loss for the year (358,566,291) (240,985,641)
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Fig. in NPR
44 Employee Retirement Benefits

a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020 ) the company has recognised an amount of NPR.
11,102,711 (Previous Year- NPR 7,889,701)as an expenses under the defined contribution plans in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans
For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

c) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Any Other Funded
Employee Benefit Plan Liability
Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Current service cost 6,619,189 3,806,676
Past service cost
Net interest cost
a. Interest expense on defined benefit 653,394 175,308

obligation (DBO)
b. Interest (income) on plan assets - -

c. Total net interest cost - -

Defined benefit cost included in

Statement of Profit or Loss 7,272,583 3,981.984 B B

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Any Other Funded
Employee Benefit Plan Liability(Leave)
Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption (484,422) 787,041
changes in DBO
b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO
c. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount
rate
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI (484,422) 787,041 - -
e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income
Any Other Funded
Employee Benefit Plan Liability
Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 7,272,583 3,981,984 - -
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI (484,422) 787,041 - -
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income 6,788,161 4,769,025 - -
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f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation Fig.in NPR
Employee Benefit Plan Any Ot.he'.— _Funded
Liability
Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 7.729,499 2,960,474 - -
Service cost 6,619189 3,806,676 - -
Interest cost 653,394 175,308 - -
Benefit payments from plan assets (729,582) - - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions (484.,422) 787,041 - -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience - - -
Defined Benefit Obligation As At Year End 13,788,078 7,729,499 - -
g) Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets
Employee Benefit Any Other Funded
Plan Liability
Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year - - - -
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Employer contributions 729,582 - - -
Participant contributions - - - -
Benefit payments from plan assets (729,582) - - -
Transfer in/ transfer out - - - -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets - - - -
Fair value of Plan Assets At End of Year - - - -
h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability)
Any Other Funded
Employee Benefit Plan Liability
Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Defined Benefit Obligation 13,788,078 7,729,499 - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets - - - -
(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of Financial Position 13,788,078 7.729.499 - -
i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year
Employee Benefit Any Other Funded
Plan Liability
Particulars
Current  Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year

Expected company contributions for the next year

(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of Financial Position

D
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j) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position Fig.in NPR

Employee Benefit Plan Any Ot.heF _Funded
Liability
Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end 7.729,499 2,960,474 - -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 7,272,583 3,981,984 - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI (484.,422) 787,041 - -
Acquisition/ divestment - - -
Employer contributions (729,582) - - -
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) 13,788,078 7,729,499 - -
k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Any Other Funded
Employee Benefit Plan Liability
Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period - - - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI (484,422) 787,041 - -
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss (484,422) 787,041 - -
1) Current/Non - Current Liability
Employee Benefit Plan Any Ot.her _Funded
Liability
Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Current Liability 1,675,552 939123 - -
Non - Current Liability 12,112,526 6,790,376 - -
Total 13,788,078 7,729,499 - -
m) Expected Future Benefit Payments
Employee Benefit Plan Any Ot_he!'.Funded
Liability
Particulars
Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year
Within 1year 1,675,552 939,123
Between 1-2 years 1,612,370 903,806
Between 2-5 years 4,481,630 2,512,276
From 6to 10 6,926,049 4,049,146
Total 14,695,601 8,404,351 - -
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n) Plan assets Fig.in NPR

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars . .
CurrentYear PreviousYear CurrentYear Previous Year

(% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested)

Government Securities (Central and State) - - - -

Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector - - - -
bonds)

Mutual Funds - - - -
Deposits - - - -
Cash and bank balances - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -

Total - - - -
o) Sensitivity Analysis
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars
Current Year PreviousYear CurrentYear Previous Year

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 12,908,969 7,237,794 - -
1% Increase in Discount Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 14,789,989 8,289,374 - -
1% Decrease in Discount Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 14,737,939 8,260,300 - -
1% Increase in Salary Escalation Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 12,941,226 7,255,813 - -

1% Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to
1% Increase in Attrition Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to
1% Decrease in Attrition Rate

p) Assumptions

Emplovee Any Other
Particulars ploy Funded
Benefit Plan R
Liability
Discount Rate 9% -
Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) 7% -
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 10% -
Mortalility Rate during employment NALMT 2009
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

45 Insurance Risk
Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature
of claims, frequency and severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance or
reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either received too little premium for the risks it has
agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims are in excess
of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an
appropriate mix and spread of business between classes of business based on its overall strategy.

This is complemented by observing formalised risk management policies.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:
a) Product development

b) Pricing

¢) Underwriting and

d) Claims Handling

e) Reinsurance

f) Reserving

a) Product development:
The Company principally issues the following types of Life Insurance contracts:
- Endowment
- Anticipated Endowment
- Endowment Cum Whole Life
- Foreign Employment Term
- Other Term
- Special Term

The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts
and geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk
and level of insured benefits.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of
claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place to
reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing
and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that
can negatively impact the business.

b) Pricing:
The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs
and the income arising from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises
collecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the base
rate, setting the final premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions
used for pricing. The base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits,
expenses, and margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company’s own historical
experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and
external data, and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the

complexity of the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against
the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

D
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c) Underwriting:

The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the by the internal underwriting procedures. Some

of the actions undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed below:

i) Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management
staff, including those attached to the distribution network.

ii) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process.

i) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined
threshold to evaluate risk prior to acceptance.

iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the
adequacy of these covers.

d) Claims handling:

The Company considers insurance claim risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:

i) Mortality Risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being dif
ferent than expected

ii) Longevity Risk - risk of loss arising due to the annuitant living longer than expected

iii) Investment Return Risk - risk of loss arising from actual returns being different
than expected

iv) Expense Risk - risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than
expected

v) Policyholder Decision Risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences
(lapses and surrenders) being different than expected

Assumptions
The assumptions that have the greatest effect on the statement of financial position and statement of profit

or loss of the Company are listed below: Fig.in NPR
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Mortality  Investment Lapseand ;00 int Mortality Investment Lapseand .. unt
Surrender Surrender
Rates Return Rate Rates Return Rate
Rate Rate
Life Insurance Table below 13.73% Table below 6.00% Table 16.14% - 6.00%
below

Product Assumption Table

. . . Product Wise Mortality Assumption
Policy Year Wise Lapse Assumption (Current Year) y id

Mortality Rates

Lapse Rate by .

Policy Year Regular Payment Single Payment NS0 Name of Product Current Previous
1 20% 1% Year Year
2 10% 2% 1 IME Child Endowment Plan (Bal
3 10% 2% Ujjwal)

4 5% 1% 2 IME Child Money Back Plan (Bal
5 5% 1% Umang)
6 5% 1% 3 IME Endowment Plan (Saral)
7 5% 1% 4 IME Endowment cum Whole Life
8 5% 1% Plan (Ajivan)
9 4% 1% 5 IME Limited Payment Endowment
10 4% 2% Plan (Sabal)
1 4% 2% 6 IME Money Back Plan (Dhanbard- 100% of 105% of
12 4% 2% han) NALM(2009) | NALM(2009)
13 4% 2% 7 IME Limited P_ayment Money Back
1 4% 2% Plan (Dhanbrikchya)
15 2% 3% 8 IME Money Back cum Whole Life
Plan (Kalpadhan)

16 2% 3%
17 2% 3% 9 Isl\glfig;nual Money Back Plan (Dhan
18 2% 3%

10  One Year's Micro Term Assurance

0, 0,
19 2% 3% Plan (Laghu Maydi Beema)
20+ 1% 4% .
1 Credit Term
12  Expat Policies 35% of 60% of

NALM(2009)  NALM(2009)

e
88 IME LIFE™ oo gfadaer 2006/00




0/g'Z8LLoy  0Lg'e8lLlov |- - 8¥6'088'¢ZY 8v6'088'¢cctr  %l- 931y Junoasi|a

- - - - - - %0l - ajey Jepualing

- - - - - - %0l - asdeT

- - - - - - %0L- asuadx3y

- - - - - - %L- uIN}ay JUBWIISBAU|

- - - - - - %0L- Ayinabuo

(999'1Le'Cel)  (999°LLg'ZeL) | - - (£11'286'9LL)  (LLL'Z86'9LL)  %0S+ a1ey Ayllepon

(ov6'c6gLSl) (OV6'262'LSL) | - - (ozL'9ss'vee)  (02L'9SS'v6T) %L+ 9)ey Junodsig

- - - - - - %0L + a)ey Jopualing

- - - - - - %0L + asden

- - - - - - %0l + asuadx3

- - - - - - %L + uJn}ay JUBWISaAU|

- - - - - - %0L + Ayinabuon

CLE6OOCOL  FLE666'TOL | - - 6L6VLLY8L 6L6VLL'Y8L %081 + ajey Ayl|epo
Xejl xejl sanliqenr sanliqer xejl Xejl sanjiger 19N sanljiger
JaYVIyold 9Joyeg yoid 19N uo $S049 Uo 19}V 14old aJoag y0id DS $S0J49U0

- (8seasoaq) - (eseasoaq) (eseasoeq) (esessoeq) | - (esessoeq) - (eses09q) uo (sseatoaq) (aseasoaq) Suondwnssy sJelnoiJe
/aseaiou| /aseaidu| /aseadu| /aseaiou| /aseaidu| /asealou| /eseatoul /aseaidu| ui sebueyo InoRied
JeaA snolnald Jea JuaLIng

ddN urbiq

'siseq |enpIAIpUl Ue uo pabueyd aqg 0} pey suonduwnsse ‘suondwnsse ul sabueyd 03 anp j}oedwl 8y} ayelisuowap 03 1ng ‘saniljigel|

swie|o ajewiyn ayy Buluiwialep Ul 1088 jueoyiubis e aaey |im suoidwnsse Jo UoIle|allod ay] "xey Jaje jyoid pue xey alojaq jyo.id ‘sanijigel| 39U pue ssolb
uo joedwi ay} Buimoys ‘Juesuod pjay suonduwnsse Jay3o | yym suondunsse Aay Ul syuswanow a|gissod Ajgeuoseal 1o} pawioyiad si sisAjeue Buimoljo) ayl
"MOJ2q 3|ge} 93] Ul pauoijuaw se suoipdwnsse AaY 8y} 03 9AI}ISUSS aJe saljljigel] WIejd aduelnsul a4 ayL

SaIIAIISURS

u ]

IMELIFE™

aiffes gfadaer 00E/ 00




e) Reinsurance
The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to the
reinsurers is in accordance with the terms of the programmes already agreed based on the risks written by
the insurance companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on the cession made in respect
of each risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions made for the
loss. Although we mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the obligation to meet
claims emanating from policy holders rests with the Company.
Default of reinsurers does not negate this obligation and in that respect the Company carries a credit risk
up to the extent ceded to each reinsurer.

f) Reserving
Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.

The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as at

year end has been measured as insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below: Fig.in NPR
Current Year Previous Year
partiodtars GrossInsurance  Reinsurance oy jgpjjties OrOSS Insurance  Reinsurance oy jgpjties
Endowment 695,605,515 695,605,515 341,117,877 - 341,117,877
Anticipated Endowment* 554,695,499 554,695,499 233,632,314 - 233,632,314
Endowment Cum Whole Life 212,884,692 212,884,692 126,652,582 - 126,652,582
Whole Life - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 183,924,710 183,924,710 172,908,776 - 172,908,776
Other Term 2,116,586 216,586 32,276 - 32,276

Special Term - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - _
Total 1,649,227,002 - 1,649,227,002 874,343,822 - 874,343,825

* Includes additional amount of NPR 9,038,892 transferred from Profit and Loss account.
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

46 Fair Value Measurements
(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial
Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost and
for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS.

Fig.in NPR
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Level

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVvOCI Amortised Cost
Investments
i) Investment in Equity Instruments 1 51,000,000 50,200,000
ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 2
iii) Investment in Preference Shares
of Bank and Financial Institutions
iv) Investment in Debentures 3 423,774,000 48,468,000
v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal 3
Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by
Nepal Government)
vi) Fixed Deposits 3 2,364,000,000 1,802,000,000
vii) Others (to be specified)
Loans 3 179,214,895 66,307,282
Other Financial Assets 3 36,399174 28,152,498
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 317,775,560 419,384,886
Total Financial Assets - 51,000,000 3,321163,630 - 50,200,000 2,364,312,665

Loans and Borrowings

Other Financial Liabilities 3 159,362,573 101,220,210

Total Financial Liabilities - - 159,362,573 - - 101,220,210

Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value
a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iii) Valuation Process
The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes.
Discussion on valuation processes and results are held at least once in a year.
The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:
a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.
b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the
discounting is material.

D
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(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost. Fig.in NPR
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Investments
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and
Financial Institutions
ii) Investment in Debentures 423,774,000 423,774,000 48,468,000 48,468,000
i) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/
Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
iv) Fixed Deposit 2,364,000,000 2,364,000,000 1,802,000,000 1,802,000,000
v) Others (to be Specified)
Loans
i) Loan to Associates
ii) Loan to Employees 22197749 22197749 10,573,935 10,573,935
i) Loan to Agent 25,294,198 25,294,198 15,115,320 15,115,320
iv) Loan to Policyholders 131,722,948 131,722,948 40,618,026 40,618,026
v) Others (to be Specified)
Other Financial Assets 36,399,174 36,399174 28,152,498
Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 3,003,388,069 3,003,388,069 1,916,775,282 1,944,927,779
Borrowings
i) Bonds - - - -
ii) Debentures - - - -
iii) Term Loan-Bank and Financial Institution - - - -
iv) Bank Overdrafts - - - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 159,362,573 159,362,573 101,220,210 101,220,210
Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 159,362,573 159,362,573 101,220,210 101,220,210

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash
flows discounted using current discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to
their short-term nature.

47 Financial Risk Management
The Company’s activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.

i) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their
payment obligations to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that
an insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance
contract.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes
credit risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are
reported to the Company’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and for changes
in the risk environment.

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is
avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management
performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase
strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

c) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

D
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Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 31, 2077

Fig.in NPR
Gross Expected Expected Carrying
Particulars Asset Group Carrying probability Credit Amount After
Amount of Default Losses Provision
. Loan to Employees 22,197,749 0% - 22,197,749
Credit Risk has not Loss allowance
significantly increased | measured at 12 months Loan to Agents 32,900,048 23% 7.605,850 25,294,198
i initial iti ted credit |
since initialrecognition | expected Creditiosses | an to Policy Holder  131.722.948 0% 131722948
Credit Risk has - - - -
significantly increased -
and not credit impaired Loss allowance
. measured at life-time
Credit Risk has expected credit losses - - -
significantly increased -
and credit impaired
Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 31, 2076
Gross Expected Expected Carrying
Particulars Asset Group Carrying probability of p Amount After
Credit Losses . .
Amount Default Provision
Loan to 10,573,935 0% - 10,573,935
Employees
Credit Risk has not Loss allowance
L ) measured at 12 Loan to 19.885,160 23.99% 4,769,840 15,115,320
significantly increased
. s " months expected Agents
since initial recognition credit losses
Loan to Policy 40,618,026 0% - 40,618,026

Holder

Credit Risk has
significantly increased and
not credit impaired

Loss allowance
measured at

Credit Risk has
significantly increased and
credit impaired

life-time expected
credit losses

Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision

Measured at life-time expected credit losses

. Measured at 12 months Credit Risk has Credit Risk has
Particulars expected credit losses significantly significantly
increased and not increased and credit
credit impaired impaired
Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2076 4,769,840 - -
Changes in loss allowances 2,836,009 - -
Write-offs - - -
Recoveries - - -
Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2077 7,605,850 - -

i) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events there
is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash out-flows and expected
reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:

The table below summarises the Company’s Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based on
their Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilities.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Up to1Year 1Yearto 5 More than 5 Upto1 1Yearto 5 More than
Year year Year Year Syear
Borrowings - - - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 156,851,217 2,511,356 - 99,086,398 2133,812 -
Total Financial Liabilities 156,851,217 2,511,356 - 99,086,398 2,133,812 -
IME LiFE‘J A YlRdGa 2006/ 00




ili) Market Risk

a1) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure
Foreignexchangeriskisthe potentialforthe Companytoexperiencevolatilityinthevalue ofitsassets, liabilities
and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its
assetsandliabilitiesanditsreportingcurrency.The Companydoesnotmaintainforeigncurrencydenominated
assetsinitsinvestment portfolios and as suchis not exposed to foreign exchangerisk related to investments.

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is settled in
Nepali Rupee.

b1) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining insurance
liabilities.

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity
Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level by
1% which is reasonably possible based on Management’'s Assessment would have the following effect on
the Profit After Tax. Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* - -

Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* - -

* Holding all other Variable Constant

c1) Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or
by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from
investments held by the Company and classified in the statement of financial position as fair value through
OCl.

b2) Sensitivity
The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity and
impact on OCI for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased/
decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that all the Company’s equity instruments
moved in line with the index.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* - -

Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* - -

* Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income.

48 Operational Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational
risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The
Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework
and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls
include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff
education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes
in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and
budgeting process.
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49 Capital Management
The Company'’s objectives when managing Capital are to:
a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Regulatory minimum paid up capital

Life insurance companies were required by the Directive of Insurance Board to attain a stipulated minimum
paid up capital of NPR 2 billion by mid-July 2018. As on the reporting date, the company’s paid up capital is
NPR 1,400,000,000. The Company is in the process of issuing Share Capital of NPR 600,000,000 to general
Public to meet the regulator requirement.

Dividend Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

(i) Dividends recognised - -
(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period - -

50 Earnings Per Share

Particulars CurrentYear  Previous Year

Profit For the Year 198,623,467 112,956,426
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year 14,000,000 14,000,000
Nominal Value of Equity Shares 100 100
Basic Earnings Per Share(Rs) 14.19 8.07
Diluted Earnings Per Share(Rs) 14.19 8.07
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

51 Operating Segment
Segment information is presented in respect of the Company’s business segments. Management of the
Company has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company’s internal reporting structure is
also based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that
it is most relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these
industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of the
view that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary
to be presented.

Business Segments of the Company'’s are:
i) Endowment

ii) Anticipated Endowment

iii) Endowment Cum Whole Life

iv) Foreign Employment Term

v) Other Term
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

e) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss Fig.in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segmental Profit 216,941,673 131,773,673
Less: Depreciation and Amortization (16,862,001 (16,840,583)
Less: Non-cash expenses other than Depreciation -
and Amortization

Less: Unallocable Corporate Expenditures (384,112,467) (272,757,919)
Add: Unallocable Other Income 289,717,981 207,190,000
Less: Finance Cost - -
Profit Before Tax 105,685,186 49,365,171

f) Reconciliation of Assets
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segment Assets - -
Intangible Assets 835,578 1,002,341
Property, Plant and Equipment 71173,387 80,025,859
Investment Properties - -
Deferred Tax Assets 178,845,868 85,479,803
Investment in Subsidiaries - -
Investment in Associates - -
Investments 2,838,774,000 1,900,668,000
Loans 179,214,895 66,307,282
Current Tax Assets (Net) 96,918,471 56,231,822
Other Assets 5,435,552 5,287,651
Other Financial Assets 39,687,352 29,901,042
Cash and Cash Equivalents 317,775,560 419,384,886
Total Assets 3,728,660,663 2,644,288,686

g) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segment Liabilities 1,649,227,003 874,343,822
Provisions 13,788,078 7.729,499
Deferred Tax Liabilities - -
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
Other Financial Liabilities 187,798,310 103,818,273
Other Liabilities 40,203,744 19151,474

Total Liabilities

1,891,017135

1,005,043,068
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

52 Related Party Disclosure
(a) Identify Related Parties
Holding Company: NA
Subsidiaries: NA
Associates: NA
Fellow Subsidiaries: NA

Key Management Personnel
Board of Directors:

Name Position
Mr. Dr. Ramhari Aryal Chairman
Mr. Deep Chandra Regmi Director
Mr. Deepak Sharma Pokhrel( From 2075/11/21 to 2076/10/08 Director
Mr. Ashwini Kumar Thakur Director
Mr. Sanjay Adhikari Director
Mr. Yugesh Bhakta Bade Shrestha( From 2076/10/08) Director

Chief Executive Officer:

Mr. Shree Chandra Bhatta( From 2075/05/06 to 2077/03/24) CEO
Others:

Global IME Bank Ltd.

IME Digital Pvt. Ltd.

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation: Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Chief Executive Officer

Short-term employee benefits 5,562,261 5,290,321
Post-employment benefits

Other long-term benefits

Termination benefits

Total 5,562,261 5,290,321

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Annual salary and allowances 5,562,261 5,290,321

Performance based allowances

i) Employee Bonus - -
ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions - -
iii) Incentives - -
Insurance related benefits

i) Life Insurance -

ii) Accident Insurance -

iii) Health Insurance (including family members) -

Total 5,562,261 5,290,321
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(c) Related Party Transactions: Fig. in NPR

Fellow
Subsidiaries Associates Subsidiaries/
Others

Holding
Company

Key Managerial

Total
Personnel

Particulars

Premium Earned

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019 ) - - - - - -
Commission Income

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019 ) - - - - - -
Rental Income

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020 ) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -
Interest Income

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020 ) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019 ) - - - - - -
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019 ) - - - - - -
Premium Paid

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019 ) - - - - - -
Commission Expenses(IME Digital Pvt. Ltd)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - 85,855 - 85,855
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019 ) - - - 292,250 - 292,250
Dividend

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019 ) - - - - - -
Meeting Fees (Paid to Board of Director)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - 996,000 996,000
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019 ) - - - - 826,850 826,850
Allowances to Directors (Paid to Board of Director)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - 1469309 1,469,309
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - 1,353,450 1,353,450
Others (to be specified)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019 ) - - - - - -

(d) Related Party Balances:

Fellow
Subsidiaries Associates Subsidiaries/
Others

Holding
Company

Key Managerial

Personnel Total

Particulars

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019 ) - - - - - -
Other Receivables (to be Specified)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Global IME Bank Ltd.- Current Account 4,074,767 4,074,767
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019 )

Global IME Bank Ltd.- Current Account 1185184 1.185,184
Payables including Reinsurance Payables

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -
Other Payables (to be Specified)

For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

53 Leases Fig.in NPR

(a) Leases as Lessee

(i) Operating Leases:

The Company has various operating leases ranging from 6 month to 10 years for House Rent and. Non-
cancellable periods is 1 month in case of Sub-Branch offices and 3 month in case of Branch offices. The
leases are renewable by mutual consent and contain escalation clause. Rental expenses for operating
leases recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year is NPR 28,772,036 (Ashadh 31, 2077/
July 15, 2020) and : NPR 25,673,276 (Ashad 31,2076/3July 16, 2019)

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1year 31,875,541 26,061,683
ii) Later than 1year and not later than 5 years 127,502,164 104,246,733
iii) Later than 5 years 6,905,268 8,742,189

(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company holds assets under finance leases. Future minimum lease payments and lease liability
at the end of the year is given below:

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1year - -
ii) Later than 1year and not later than 5 years - -

iii) Later than 5 years - -

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments - -

Less: Effect of Discounting - -

Finance lease liability recognised - -

(b) Leases as Lessor

(i) Operating Lease:
The company does not have leased out any of its assets under operating Lease.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below:
Future Minimum Lease Income Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
ii) Later than 1year and not later than 5 years - -

iii) Later than 5 years - -
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(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company does not have leased out any of its assets under Finance Lease.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Gross Unearned Net Gross Unearned Net
Finance Finance
Investment Investment Investment Investment
Income Income

i) Not Later than 1year - - - - - -

ii) Later than 1year and not - - - - - -
later than 5 years

iii) Later than 5 years - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -

54 Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed in capital accounts and not provided for

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Property, Plant and Equipment

Investment Properties - -
Intangible Assets - -
Total - -

55 Contingent Liabilities
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed in capital accounts and not provided for (net of
advances)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts

a) Income Tax - -
b) Indirect Taxes - -
c) Others (to be Specified) - -
Total - -

56 Events occuring after Balance Sheet
There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to July 15, 2020 till the signing of this
financial statement.

57 Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Reinsurance Receivables

Investments in equity - -
Fixed Deposits - -
Property, plant and equipment - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total - -

58 Miscellaneous
(i) All amounts are stated in Nepalese Rupees(NPR) unless otherwise stated.
(i) All igures are Rounded off to the nearest rupee
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur

Annexure |l
Minimum Disclosure in Management Report
(Year Ended Upto Ashadh 31, 2077)

A Information related to Life Insurer
Under this title following matters shall be disclosed

-

a b~ NN

Date of establishment: 15th Ashwin, 2065
Insurer licence date: 20th Ashad 2074
Insurance business type, nature: Life Insurance
Date of commencement of business: 1st Bhadra, 2074

Other matters which insurer wish to include: None

B Insurer’s Board of Directors shall approve following matters

1

7
8

9

Validity of license issued by Beema Samiti to carry insurance business:

Renewal of License has been made as per provison of Insurance Act and Regulation. Similarly there was
no condition related to clause 11 (KA) of Insurance Act 2049. Hence License is valid.

There are no arreas of any tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation.
Share Holding Pattern of the Company is in accordance with prevailing laws & regulation. There was no
capital infusion by the promoters during the year. The shareholding pattern is available in Schedule 17a
The Company has adequate assets to cover both its liabilities and minimum Solvency Margin as prescribed
by Beema Samiti. The solvancy ratio of Company for Current Financial Year is 1.51

a) Assets Presented in SOFP are not overstated than it's fair value.

b) Fixed Assets recognized in financial statements are at historical cost less Depreciation.

All Investments made are in accordance with Investment Directives issued by Beema Samiti and Internal
Investment Policy of the Company.

Total number of claim settled within the year is 32 and total no. of outstanding claim during the year is 2
Financial Statement have been prepared in accordance with applicable provisions of the Insurance Act
2049, Insurance Regulation 2049, Company Act 2063, NFRS and other prevailing laws and regulation.
Appropraite accounting policies have been consistantly applied.

10 Financial statements are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of the states of the affairs of the

company at the end of the financial year and of the operating profit of the company for the year the ended.

11 Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets and for

identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities.

12 Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
13 The internal control system of the company is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of the it's

business and is operating effectively.

14 The insurer has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act, 2049, Companies Act, 2063,

related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and insurer’s director or with any entity
in which insurer’s director has interest.

15 There are no any penalties, levied by Beema Samiti for the particular financial year.
16 Other disclosure which is deemed appropriate by management: None.
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I.M.E. Life Insurance Company Limited
Registered and Corporate Office, KMC-26, Lainchaur

Annexure lll

Major Financial Indicator Fig.in NPR
S.N. Particular Indicators Fiscal Year
2072/73 2073/74 2074/75 2075/76 2076/77
1 Net worth NRs. - 1410,672,654 1,526,218,779 1.639,245,618 1,837,643,528
2 Number of Shares Number - 14,000,000 14,000,000 14,000,000 14,000,000
3 Book value per shares NRs. - 100.77 109.02 117.09 131.26
4 Net Profit NRs. - 10,762,654 115,517,612 112,956,426 198,623,467
5 Earning per Shares (EPS) NRs. - 0.77 8.25 8.07 14.19
6 Dividend per Shares (DPS) NRs. - - - - -
7 Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NRs. - - - - -
8 Price Earning Ratio (PE Ratio) Ratio - - - - -
9 Solvency Margin % - - 1167 1.450 1.51
10 Change in Equity % - - - - -
" Return on Revenue % - - 23% 13.60% 14.63%
12 Return on Equity % - - 7.57% 6.89% 10.81%
13 Return on Investments % - - 10.09% 10.48% 9.68%
14 Return on Assets % - - 5.94% 4.27% 3.03%
15 Operating Expense Ratio % - - 30.50% 32.27% 28.08%
16 Net Insurance Premium/ Gross Insurance Premium % - - 92.95% 97.52% 96.86%
17 Net Profit/ Gross Insurance Premium % - - 21.52% 13.26% 1417%
18 Gross Insurance Premium/ Total Assets % - - 27.61% 32.21% 37.60%
19 Income from Investment & loan/ Total investment & % - - 10.00% 10.67% 10.01%
loan amount
20 Reinsurance Commission Income/ Gross Reinsurance % - - - - -
Premium
21 Management expenses/ Gross Insurance Premium % - - 31.94% 34.87% 29.53%
22 Agent Related Expenses/ Gross Insurance Premium % - - 14.68% 10.46% 10.57%
23 Number of Agents Numbers - - 3,310 6,186 10,926
24 Number of Branch and Sub-Branch Numbers - 1 44 72 104
25 Employee expenses/ Management expenses % - 9.03% 35.08% 36.02% 36.22%
26 Employee expenses/ Number of Employees % - 7.097 435,848 546,135 625,962
27 Outstanding Claim/ Claim Paid % - - - 1.12% 0.98%
28  Total Number of In Force Insurance Policies Numbers - - 46,850 70,569 89,398
29 Gross Premium Growth Rate % - - - 58.66% 64.61%
30 Change in Gross Premium % - - - 58.66% 64.61%
31 Actuarial Provision Amount - - -
32 Technical Provisions/ Total Equity % - - -
33 Reinsurance Ratio % - - 7.05% 2.48% 3.14%
34 Gross Premium Revenue/ Equity % - - 35.17% 51.95% 76.29%
35  Net Premium Revenue/ Equity % - - 32.69% 50.66% 73.89%
36 Insurance Debt/ Total Equity % - - - - -
37  Liquidity Ratio % - - 0.97 3.68 1.58
38  Affiliate Ratio % - -
39  (Unquoted Equities + Debtors)/ Net Total Assets % - -
40 Number of Renewed Policy/ Last Year's Total Number of % - - - 85.68% 78.94%
In Force Policies
4 Number of Intimated Claim/ Total Number of In Force % - - 0.01% 0.05% 0.04%
Policy
42 Declared Bonus Rate % - - 25-70 13-70 20-70
43 Interim Bonus Rate % - - - - -
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sl SHERT SR foideel S R HUeel fodilr faeur 3o
3 Te Cp e o0l saTe s el giatet |

o wearHs atufa
AE. THE ATF T Fel At
AT, FTEUTET, A9 |

SET_(Opinion)

7T AT, UH.E. WTEW SRy eeAy fafire e weedr wfauen & adarg we fafae
freorEe#l SETTANY VI T @), FEA Y09 9IE ¥ (94 SFIE 20%0) F G, @i
aa war Aifs T g e awy @ g A faedn e dran afaise i
i “dirE o erae T S e Feew geeh Ao anitaw serite smawrrEe
Gricd rea gl

FTET AT AT faary faavoees FATEl 0ws @ 3 ads fadrg feafa, = miEe aare
e |

SRED! SR (Basis for Opinion)

FOT A9 FETaEeE =00 (NSA 800 Special Considerations - Audit of financial statements
prepared in accordance with special purpose frameworks) FHIfsa Srarafiem @err e @5 1 A
gaeatam" fimiwar 99 =wen afwe g fam fevo daredfge = AeEE g T
ST ASFATE ATRHT T A g e A raardiE w9 W i@t
RIS SRTTHETE ETHT TOETE G i @ A ae ard fvas @

T #0909
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e S5 _(Emphasis of Matter)

B fewet aramr w5 gfrads ad fasfra et a9 3 9% eI RIS A, wEe
SETYAE] ATUEGE] ATCHT GATAT TeHl 3 | Tea [ faavoes S afafas @ife mes odfaw
AT =EET T draEe e P geed PR aree 19 S9vae a9 qus & a9d A
faefrr fraores er weiToT ATl SRR AEd TREEA | 99 favae g e ofiEde woE 8 )

I ST_(Other Matter)

u® A Aure faefrr sfedesmr (Nepal Financial Reporting Standards - NFRS) A& am .
R0 see F g faei fasww maw wewr 7oA fado fravw sovoenfier fafs soes 9999 =
FEIAE SaAETaTE B amrateeer gtaaa wfe T g o

e fowrEs SR SOl R IRTRPY STGRT &&al OB SiRRpRID!
TERCIRITT (Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements)

dren wfafaa sife e “Sra d a0 e fasd e gl e sy Rl
faaeores e ua heaa vl 7 SEREIT STARITAT W | A a1 P FRE §
TR 1enfen B Praomes ah v Sfaw v i smerw amavre ae
FFUET At = gt feard e s 6@

Fadftr faareor @A wat @&erdist afafsg=an (Going Concem) #few w1 7 wworrad
sfafegmrara avafras fuyasaeaes! sayasar yqa7 gaar 74 Aaeqas gavarfiea
&l | PIAEAITAS FEAATE @IEAT AT FIAT 7% T4 AAETT AGAT T ATARSF] B AT
frgen ave= s aes Ffatege=arst wr=ramEn s dama 9291 (Going Concern
Basis of Accounting) #9AT3™ |HT Fa&AIA Faiedl £78 |

WEiE] AR gFd T4 HiuEe FREE A widesd gEmE tmead an e
g |

il fRaeup! SRaaIeTe ERaaEieD®! JtRERIcT (Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of Financial Statements)

BTl 3290 QAT [ [4a9uEs Seanil a1 G40 #0 Ad, $9A1 Ted Sedal (Material
Misstatement) ¥ a7 w1 Aafaa srears ara 4 @l 7 wfeaat giade e 7 & ) "
AVATHA AT Io9 TCE! AVATAA B | A, AU SArTEuHITE] draiea §uy fey sareivee
AR TTHT T WEqAr  Wow gvgny ff frprawaarg @8 owr e e gen 9ife ade
TEATHT A1 FEIHl FV AT RN &4 WG ¥ A UHd GEEed] dei- e 91 q9Y Hd
TET yATTEAEE fawdr faevoes s 5 @fds o wafes qaee waE o aear =i
WGA 4T AT TR AU A3 |

O H.3/4
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FITE AMTTHATAIT WAR MRUF S@ITAAUE ATE 9 AT SaEardE 57 (Professional
judgement) F1 THTT THFE AIH SrETTHE yafiray FrAaEiE e (Professional skepticism) #HE
FAH TEE | AE ARE A

fafrr Faavvmes et @1 TEE T AW AUHT Ted GEiATET g4 S S
q91 Afda T, f AfaHeEag T T ST TEay qSE T A T T Ew awars
qate da1 graa g fefawa dEnafie weEalt wavEE dwed T gl | FE T
wig-wis, fremal, Faaey g4 @2, e wEE a1 Aieics Aae QTS A ATE 8
TG |

FEATE AE e g g ee o Aws afeadeen s sfae S
TISATE! AAAT T AGTAIH FIAF 5 Ao framaoret A oo g7a) |
TEFAA TR TH] SEHIOEeE JTUhAl ol Sargd weEfe qEe qar s
HATAEEF! HTTAAE TATGT TH 5 |

FA HEAT 91 AT FVIA] ATafEE SUAT WA £ AHarET TR S A T S
ATATCEAAT FTAH T A FEITOGE] Faafasrn are WU THIEEE HTTHT SR
] T AfaTsEATATR ATETET e SEryd 9gqr (Going Concern Basis of Accounting)
e WU v frewe e @ 1 oaft anier arope sfafesaa s @ wia e
Frarerar avewn i Faavom mreEn waEias garEn 9% S@rereen GiasEa e s
TG &g #9d1 A1 GATETET TATE ARUE] EVSHT FTET TAAT A SiEee WA £ | ET
Freref dramritserat fafaasran e aamfre TaEeRr anafe ga ) iy sirvamr e
HEAT AT HETATE FIO FEAT Afafege FOA] FSHEAA] AR AW |

fafes FH@ET A4 FZAESE AAE WA 3avd 9T g4 0 (A EEemEE aer
U AquEr 7T faeir fearorar garEeE 7 awn ged, e qdar fanei |8 g a9
el

arfie arafEn EEe g5 T AaEiEeeg 3 A stafen sraradterE dreen aeaee

I

wrA, Fraiaw aar sEmfms feeafaamn ofrmm war arfe S goneEe Te
FUAMEEF W AGTTIE FAE SfaUE e #Eaaes FHa AEEE TEHE 9 |

Peretrariraer and aTal SE=rara Serer T O T A9 AR q4T A7 FIEE ST el
FERI] AUATIAGA AIGHHIF ARAT FHG AAEE T 7 |

3o el TNl ORISIEIPR] forpRIeh]  Jasepal FRfich] JIESST  (Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements)

mify Iwifgs =wdmd dfaie erfe T sar ofiaw T ERiETE W e 0F T
wftgeFTerr FraTeAT FAETEE 49 wiaaEE )

)
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(@) SETTHAT FE=T T ATATAT GIAT T LI FueAed HUF G |

(@) v g Faaroes S afafas e wa atsmar aae aftoer g A afafae e
e gf=rar gar i fafrn fravowe weeiE TEe qErdn 3EE w89 |

(1) BT TEEEEE qdT ETHTATE OIS FEAT AT N 7 EDA TORL A
ATIRHT FFAE aeaed ainig a wiafel @ & wFeie wem faeg dEr aeel ad
FIHFTA AT Atqatua w1 v a1 FeE qeita e wE ar weiE e Sean
T AT TAET AU SATHETHT AT |

(57) FFEYATHT SET TR EA AT I BT SIS I |

() FEAH AT AEHE AT A T, 30 7 dran famreeh, vows gHifEn ggie wiEn
WEF @ | WA FegArE A @, afeard Ser FOoqen A uEdE g w4
wiatawr A Aoy aas 2=

() FPIAT AT YT AT SEATT AR A AW EAATT TR ATHT AHEH A0
(@ FPA Arfradr e-fen Paemar @ @0 T B AARTTAT A0 |

(o) FTE ST AT ETHIATE 9T HEAT a7 S ¢ erdie vl ST AT
q, #rar \fafrare sl wquEn draedn gegmd qemed weEel R o 1 AW 4
w1 frawer drar atatrare b afyear gama 99 Ao a91 g0 SEeaTE q@r
TEFT ek qd1 AEATEIE AIF APAEAl AT ¢ T T 4T WEAT ARG A
YFTTFT ATHT BIAHTE T4 A ged Wl S1ed] qual 9f FEAE AT, 3099198 | GH
g 9T HAEE Fie FAfhEs ATRT ATSrerE S T ATATEE gaed e @

#rr wfufas ‘Insurance Management Information System (IRMIS) #rea
ATAEATET TATHA 9 A A EEn WY S g gy i so9y
] BT 4 B QAT ETEET ATEN SEAEAaE 9 R & |

3. #eE ai aur dTRT FEET qSEeE g MR 3093 @1 3% ¢ AT Ied AT
Ay Fraq AT ST G T G T T, 3 A GAAAH] 4096 A19Ig 3 wE
FHATEN FqehT 91 & 9§ ¥4 Y0 HIF HIA FAH EH F

(W) TEATE gToTE WIS HTRedl STHICE ST TE FTH STASIEAT AT |
() ST STATEATTS ATAEE TTT A 3 o AT A s dfEs |
(@) g AR AT TS TS WA AT WA 7RI Tl SRR AT

T .8 /Y
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N R afE |

(% FeATe A# frarr faera faavoran ffgusr gumeiey ad9d rEREEATE FEATE GETHT
augR wErgd a4 ¥ fatae s qur fadg wwaessr |gfa fEown avEr e
farorst afwae gaem wel wAEE INEErd AAreud AfETE | TeeRE e
HEAAHTE q47 rfiard gre A 97 oedrEo 1 prdfie avE Agrrfiaes Ay
FrrAral greafis A= qorel oarasrdt wwr fass |

(2) TEMISTHE FHAT ITEUE RETGET URISE SE@iiaee aiadeqdr Jeed T e
sarEigy afafaE G TRuE @ ) I gidded 9 gsaes giEiad gedse g8 g qud
1

(@) FEAET  TERSAE W [FaEsE]  @dd oEvaEy  AROEr  Wodr 9t @
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

L

Kabi Phuyal
Chief Executive Officer

Denesh Amatya Karma Raj Poudel
Chief Operating Officer Chief Marketing Officer

0060

Sudeep Rana Jagat Bohara Manoj Chaudhary

Chief Risk Officer Chief Financial Officer Chief Strategic Planning
& Talent Management
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REGIONAL MANAGERS

M?Ian Dahal Ravi Shankar Saraff
Regional Manager Regional Manager
Pradesh No. 1 Madhesh Pradesh

Chandra Prasad Bhattarai
Regional Manager
Bagmati Pradesh

S

Prem Prasad Timilsena Suman Prasad Timilsena
Regional Manager Regional Manager
Lumbini & Karnali Pradesh Sudurpaschim Pradesh
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IME LIFE CHATBOT & MASCOT

IME LIFE DIRECT

IME Life Insurance Company is the first life insurance company to offer services through chatbot. The chatbot
was redesigned to address the increasing requirement of our customers. The chatbot is named “IME Life
Direct” to let the stakeholders know that communicating with Chatbot will give similar user experience as it is

communicating with the company personnel directly.

IME LIFE DIGIME

On the occasion of reaching 10,000 organic likes on Facebook page, we launched the company’s mascot fondly
named as DigIME in the form of robot and human hybrid. The purpose is to convey the message that current era
is digital technology driven. The company aims to provide all its services through digital technology in future.
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EVENTS

Cake-cutting ceremony during 4th

I Anniversary of IME Life, standing from right
CEOQO-Mr. Kabi Phuyal, Directors-Mr. Ashwini
Kumar Thakur, Mr. Deep Chandra Regmi,
Mr. Sanjay Adhikari and Mr. Yugesh Bhakta
Bade Shrestha

I Agency meet program held at Gandaki Pradesh




Business Excellence Awards- Standing from
left- Brand Ambassador- Ms. Manisha Koirala,
Chairman- Dr. Ram Hari Aryal and CEO- Mr.
Kabi Phuyal.

Speech by Chairman-Dr. Ram Hari Aryal
during Business Excellence Awards 2021.



Chief Executive Officer- Mr. Kabi Phuyal giving
I his speech at Business Excellence Awards
2021.

Standing from right Brand Ambassador Ms. Manisha Koirala, Group MD Mr. Hem Raj Dhakal, Best
Branch Certificate being received by Mr. Mahendra Timsina from Birtamode Branch, Director Mr.
Sanjay Adhikari, COO Mr. Denesh Amatya and CMO Mr. Karma Raj Poudel.
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BRANCH OFFICES

State1

Taplejung  Khatang
Findim Bhogpur

[LE Qkhatdhunga
Bartamed Sohukhumbis
Dormak Rajaranl
Tershthem  Badantodpu
Dhankuts Fhakal, |l
Diharan Kakadbhitts
Haimari Sutunga
Biatnagar  Bhadrapur
I rund Url¥bari
Cipigihat fhahai
Entari Gaurasdahy
Pathar

E T

Bagmati State

Sirrchul Chafiket
Ramaechkap  imatel

Boreps  Baneshwor Gandaki State Karnali State

Bhaklapur  Mepaltor

Eathmandu  Tokha Gorkha Lokhnath Wost Rukum  Bhusigaun Pyuthan Nepn Bajhang Darchula
Hoharajgunj Kertipur Dl Pokharebagar Jojarkot Ehajura Dang E.sﬁ._b.,_._ Accham Sukhad
Dharkn Gattaghar Besisohar  Sotipnay Eurkhi Hagorageshi Lamahi Gulasiya Bajura Botaudi
Laitpur Parsa Kawaseli Gkt Juariln Hugu Bhairafiws Palpa Dokl Ehajani
Hetauda Popsicola Poihara Bhimed Daitekh Tharmara Bulwal Parasi Thapu Punairbas
Hardyanghal Bhaisepati Baglung Sundarbazar Solvan Frufourn Jeotpur Murgiyn Lk Snarfebogar
Gongabu  Bhakundobeshi B Dulogauda Ridjapur RAptiLona Sandhiearkd Devdaha Dhangadhl  gamalbazar
Chabahl Dhading Ced Abukhalrgnd  Patenglar Mehalkung Samshorgunj Cutmi Ramspur Adberia Bahuniya
ik Wakng Cuipiple Manigram  Tulsipur Mahendranagar Jnslari
Huwalat  Pharping Kusma Dadeldhura  Maguliva

Panauti Swandambhiu Baatadi
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